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Tel.: 97714673299
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qied] drea fatiasal ¥& sl aiffe e qur Fwae=l =T
= FAGAT ST,

fafg 09 9T 03 T (4o fEEFER R0R0) THARE & THF 7T Wl gad fafadg (FFT) B goATAH
TrAfaPr 23937 ToFH AT AR A FEOAET YA AME AraRer gy Hefated fafd, awa T s
frefafad fawaes I geha qor (U 9 o& AU Ith AERT GHTHT WIH a1 Raqaedead! qiafaiacagr
Aadifad WeH qATT wEAd ffedT FR (Virtual video conference medium) RTEAHATE FUTEAT g
AT T SREAT HETTATAEEH] ATTHTIRT AT AT FAAT T TRTH 3 |
q. |1 g Miq, 99T T S
fafe: 3009 W W I} T TGTAR 93 AL 079, TIARET f& |
g feE 99.008W |
WM S S FrEATd, R, FISATS |
fargaeamdy FomT Hiqus HETHRT FREAEE (BT - 9%) P IHT TI@H TGS FAH
&l fa9m ¥ aryeferd afkfeafaerr o wraTRr weaAt AiftiE AERT TATH TsF THAA
fafedr FeRg ATEHATE oA A | Al GSHHT ARGAESH! Juredd W fafedr
FRT HHaTe Fiafved A quarer difdae JURISrHT quTe WWER FRT T (FfE -
9%) I qoT AFHATH FHed TAAEIF AATAIIF Yedhd Mo AqANATEE HSTSh]
T AT T3 ARG HETAHTAEHT AR GAHT EARar q=aret fafear dehera aergy
HIEAHATE JUTETTR] AT ARG TRUBIE T Elie ATAR AT T, |

R TARAH [AHIEE

Soaltee Hote
* * b g

(®) qEHE T4

9. I 9 0% /000 (09%,/30) F FoHTeldh ATATTH! aMtie giqaed i T |

R AEIITEFE Giqaad afeddr AifdE a9 095 /008 (R09%, /30) FH ATNE AMUF [TaRUES,
(Financial Statements), 099 TG FATIHT araara (faira feafaerr faawo), @rer fafaar
THT TUH ATRT-ATHE fG@re (ATHRT a1 T a9 9= faeqa g fqazon), T@ g4
fa@oT (FRTT gATE T faavor), qgT SHTSTHT TR TRATTRT (a0 T T HFIAT AT FFIATRT
FETAF FFIAEEH ANGH a6 Q0% /099 (09 /30) T [0 [aRuIEs THT FHTALT TEdh!
FHEIHTHT Tlehepd AT [AaXUEs, (Consolidated Financial Statements) 9% AR T
qIed T |

3. FHETR dq@radeer atafaer fawtfe aHitae e ad 3088/ 8 (R030/39) HI AT
FEIHTF! THE J@IeTE R T qan ey aifesifae frateor 7 |

@ fafqg
¥, fafaa: sremere dAld #ER |




Soaltee Hotel Limited
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Y& aiities Qremor AT Gl STl

q. faeaeandt sqH1 BIAUHT HETHRT BIRATAGIH (A - 92) 1 FebT TATeTAT TUTad T TEh &G99 T ATATRIS
qfefeafaepr RO FEAAET WS A AMTE AR TR ToF T (feAT FERTT AT FoATAT A, |
FEIHIPT ST ATMTE ARV TR TSHAT T FATgdT Frherd AeawaTe Gesrirdrel Fiaar STavdiTesd]
AT ST Iledl Id1 M6, a1 dfedl Toad TedRI g9 SHHN RISS, Iq Jal qT3ash! ATITRHAT ( first come first
served basis) WA [ATSAT Fhed UARAMETH AMfaFIveF S0 9 €1 A1 Video conference @& (link) ITaed
TRIgs, | Ard fafedr FeRefeaT (Teren) TTha YRt AT AR TR TSHAT A o TERaiTEEdT e
FEATNTATATS FFIAT U, R0%3 HT THT 93 FHITTHP! YT F@IT TUANTET IATEAfqar FHTEET T IT0ET T |

R, YRl AMGE WERYT GATHT TATSIAF] AT FFIATRT ST97 qad @RST al [T gaane, 098 91T qY T
(30th December 2020) 3@, FETaR, 098 GIT R, (13th January 2021) T THT HATT ¥ TR TAT JFI AT
FEHHT AT 75 T@g | AT, I Teoh THI=vs [ATHdSHT (AT 098,08 /9% Td TF (HIATEAR  #RMER 9%
T FEAE] SO MG @ISR AT I §F ATTHT SEREAT HETTHATAREATs a9 TR THTR! TATSTAER TN
ARG BAR TRAG, |

3. e fafedr F=he AeamaTe Qe g9 g7 SAREWT HeT HIaesdrs Y&l ot qamer 97 T Jureqd
U IRE AT [G57g | Ao (Afedr Fehir AIeAAaTe FeaTiT g9 & SaRdiesd! ale (Aofgsd Tl aTed
(Virtual Log-in ) 2T STETRHT TS | STARIAEEATE FeHTTATR! oTRT Toarer fafear dehem srovafTesan afusifce
A ATESAT Video conference % (link) FFIHTH 50 |egal@soaltee.com.np AT TITSH FLT TRAS, |

¥, Rl At Arerer qurer guAr afeder Gfie e faaror R06% 9 SERAMHETaEEATS SAREHAT ANaHT
FTAT TEHN THA ST G TR | AR v g=a ¥ i faeruee afeqsr veat amfie gfaaeT
R0\% /99 FF FFIIHl ATATEE Website: http:/ / www.soaltechotel.com®T B |l & |

Y. TARAR AU T [Afay ofiiwedr TrraaT RaAHET e F (9T S FARA T =e ATHT qEEted
fawg @aTE AMfter AR AT EAART © T TS AATT 098 T R (% FHAL R0%q) WA AR FE HEAT
qad AThd TH FFAIH FUFR] AATATS [A@d STHERT (67 998 | a%, TqATs A T TR g TEras]
FAHT FHTIIT TRA G |

% SERyETg wiatafa (Gl fraee 78 9@ fafafa e o, @ar o & Wt R Yo gvar SR e
TS FATAT, ARTAAAT TAT T TH TG, |

O, SIRIHETATS FEIAIPT YT ATF AR GAT TEAT T A= T AT AT FATAT TR {77 FFITehr
T FATT Wil Eae qRaN, der=d, FISHTSHT ATHaR 3 Thar 9 [ge 90 oo 36T dRT=e ¥ auf
T (faEr  3€1 R a9 @) THH e GH g |

G. I SO AR THATE o U U e fo, @ aud S RISy |

fafea Frmpifae TeEe (S ) Yiafie TARTh HTeAseTe wramehl ¥&3i arfie qreare
GATH STSHAT T ITEIT A W [A7ehl T TRl HeTHEaeed (TS I

{1 fefedeh] FEIAT STl Gl AT :-

9. Fewriigd RRgHars S 9tata (ZOOM Applications) &1 IRT AThG fafedl wemifag (w=@E«) AreTHane
FEIAH] LS FATAT, Wedl Edd IaR, ATETAA, FISHTSIHT g9 Y& AT AT TR TP TSHHT I
T AT SSHAT ARG T AR THETHIEae®  JUHETH Gadid HFIHT UF fad 3l avaiTeed!
FEAHAT IUAH / TARGAT AT [HATIHT TEhT / YT g ATTHN GEaATed ANTHINE SHA ATSSAT HFIAETE I
Tfeur foid ATRd At T T T FERHH foq avg | eEs quafs qeanit g SRateEd FEaee
faew guleare U FRANT (ICHI) THA WIS THEAS, TAHT TSHHT ATH g GEITe AT e TSHAT
THad Iufead g feie T gve |

R, TSHHT AR SURIT HE AT Fraed T ATEAg SARGAHETTATAEd FRIAT g8 [a7 SR FFAT afaa ar
FHTIHTRT SR 50l A5sl legal@soaltee.com.np ATEAHATE T8 % TR THFT ATH [a9TSaT SHRETH!
AqTH, ARG Febd AR 4T fe®meel BOID TR, dRUNH! 0¥ T©T, SRR S, HIATed TR hraIarg
JUA RIS &1 AR G |

3. YR AT IR TATHT TSHFAT TG GeARIT GfataredT ATAaar, THaE qTawel, STASIATE T gratdh
fzeear ¥ Araaar R &9 da1 fuifea awg fad avaer Tt qdd SOREEHEEE aHA AR g | Jead
HIARATE AN TATATHT TGS F WAk TSAST AT TSIIHAT AAETF 2T-geedT AT aTaT g qTHT AT
FATHT iataty 9o fde @a: q@eg (ferade) g8 |

¥, ¥Rl AME AR GAH TSHHT T TEAIAT Fafde SIHT THT FTHAHT AN TATIHHETTIE aTqe
AR SSHAT GeART g drearfed Tea) |

Y. HETEd ITFT AT SATASATE AT ATIeT AT TS & HIATSd geeic HIhd JedRl & SaRdmHaTTaraeed
AT TEAHAT ATCIRATHT FRO Afedr ¥ FATSar T=A(THT #1=0 39THT VR (a9 qa gal ¥R aghie ¥ LAN
Connection (@9 ™) FIRT 19 fawifea i |
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Torwar: et fees meRr s
HeRMI,
................................ RIEAT ceveecrreeeeccrsenecccsseneee. ALATL/ AT, / T
UT., TET Feeeerrrneeeeces TET T/ BTHT ceeerrrnneeccrsaneeccsssanseccsssnnsescssansesssssanaes

o TIE HEATRT FEREHRT 2Eaet 0600 A WIS ARAT 2] T Feramwent
T ¥& 3T AT ATLRUT THTAT T ITRAT WS SeTher qolT FuiaaT sgamit g1

F/(BO AccOUNt NO.) ceeeeecerccsscssccsccsscssscssesscssscssosaes Fl'l'g W/ grar afatter
A T TSI B/ B |

IR TUTUTAS . /(BO ACCOUNE NO.) eeresssssssee sssesssnsssseses sosssssssssses seves

e THTOTTST STUHT TR Teha . cevvreereees

TEST: AT TAEEA STLRUT AT 3 WET SHIRaHT %¢ HUST ST ru-Tent INTES
HIATTIHT Y91 TRAH TS |



gfafata e v s fHawes

AR FATHT I TSTST =Mer SRREAEsd Abl SARGATATs TiarArd Haeh T gfarrg
frafh faes 99T 9% E9waT FRITAT ¥ HUal A HFIHIH! AL T, ATET=AHT ol

I & | FFR gfdita s TRl s gfqtaty AR g9 SAfthel 9T 9RT fq T AT

qder_ 9 9189 3 |

~

F e BHA Gfafia fah TR @ wHeET Hifdd giatt M Tl Hee /e /e
g8 ¥ IO giamty ok wer gfataty fafe Mees arg arewe &  Iar JHO 99 geid
THIEEG | EA GRS wEG gfatfy EE TeT @Rl AndEn BEET 99 ArhEresd
FaaHTare Mach Wbl gidmtg Mg Feea 9@ a7 g ¥ 9 yiadtg e &l
gttty fafs fHaeT arg arvhary &8 a8l T99 9 F9d T TS |

TIRT T THFAT &I AThepl ATHAT 997 [TUHTHT AT AHIREe Fiqrrg a<h Tal I
AHIRA Fer@gd W [Ieh Wbl qiadtg ke Meaaars a=aar G | Ja s a gq
TAHE! GUSHT IAREHIETH Al [hATaHT FIh ITAREHIEE HeH TEHhl ATH A=l TS
gt g s fauer gfafafa fafe Faeaars amar feeme

F ATATAF SARIAIR] ATHHAT STAX TRPIHT ST AT FaTaaT = ATarerd Srawee!
ARETFF] TIHT Joot@ WUH AR Ferad T Faeh Wb gfatata fafe feeaars am
A fege |

ThWTwaT FET G (IR TReBTHT BT HIATAadT qa waT dfgel adl Tl qfaratg Hafw

frergmaTg AR fog oA glatataerg GarT 9T foaq td gaee 9 639 |

gfatata faes 9 SRR gfatta fAafe faeaar que s¥aed FEEel gEATET Tedn
TPl SEq@A@ 5] AUHT | A& iatg Haieh Haea gar s |

IRGATT AR (Aqh T AT g T ATCH AFDT [Afgd STHHNT TAT T &1 ATl
FRIAT ¥G Ul A FFIARl ATARE FATAIH], FA@T q0g o qa T8 g g |
giaftg s T el @I GATHT IUId AUAT AR ATh TRl Jiaig T8 T 9l

ST T IHATHT 90T {9 T "de™ 9 199 |
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o1 FAfT R g fafer fAders
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Y%A A Glaqae 09 /099 Soaltee Hofel Limited
Tied! gled fafads
3 ATHTE 000 (9L S[ETE R0%0) FT AR fafad feafaar faazor
ot
e s T ATE
ot il )
FEATH FHRT
R =T gt
Tuatd, FRTRT T TR q,¥33,R%¥ %39 9,255, %4R,%3%
e R 2,03¥,63%, 239393
T 2y et %333%,5%¥ 24,993,259
A F JEIA 40,590, ¥4 ¥ %R,%55,35R
S RE3,5%%,950 353,585,250
IR AT T 9T 15,39%,934 ¥3%R¥ Q0%
9,2%R,0%3,00% q,\80¥ R 0Y ¥oY
1,
foret Hisard, @, T, ATIH SR, A0S T G AXE ¥29,%%%,%3Y £2.5,440,995
I =T At %43, %9395 ¥ ¥¥REY,3US
=T i 9¥5,043,¥40 WY,RREURY
ER R 3,00 99%,¥4 R,030,539,%%
FIIAH! T
Y =1 At ¥93,234,%9% ¥0R 653 9%
T AARIACTDT B 9,%29359,R¥0 q,%35,0%% 90
EISIHIE VRIS
IR g S¥3 Y9 930 33 §9Y, 3190
Hfera FATRT q9T SreT 59%,%09,490 5?Y,39¥, 350
1,%49959,3¥0 1,%35,0¥%, 940
H T GoTrepl AT 0.09 0.0y
3] 9T 009 (4 FATE J0R0) AT FHTK WU P! ALATRA AR faazar
SRRl
e et ey UEEIRES g/ (@)
ELE ELE % HT
ATRT
PIST, TLEIUE, S, AT Jar qan fafae sma 9,]%¥,005 5%9 1,53%,335,4¥% (31.0%%)
g
FHAT e g=es ¥¥3 L 0Y, ¥OR 449,00%,5%% (9%.49%)
Gy 9T YT gETgR gud RO%,RIR&YY 309,4%%, 99 (39.%9%)
AT Teeh 5 UYL R4 ¥R,5R9¥R0 (¥R.53%)
EEIEERCE 1599%¥9 955 R¥T,04R,954 (RI.R¥%)
BT T aikedas @= 29,243,039 50,3%930% (%.%%)
qT g 95%,9¥R,%4% 30,509 035 (%.95%)
o @rTa Y95 ¥4 930,340 (R0.50%)
Fq g q,3R¥,05% R’ q,¥%0,¥94,¥0% (RR.%0%)
T TR ATFT AT TATHT 93%,R3,5%5 353%939%¥0 (R3.44%)
Tq qGHT F GH (Q4,R03,R3) (95,00%,309) (9%.%9%)
TAH FR AT/ (GH) (99,299,%35) (%,5%%,3%4) 93.%9%
THET G& AT 9R,0¥R,1¥9 33,090,245 (5R.43%)
ST ATHT IS ATTHT 534,495,399 919,549,590
Afereddl qTHT HY TR - 9R%,3%Y
A IR ST (10%,R0% 3%0) (%%,%99,%20)
Y YIB! @IS A AEGHT (HTHIAT) /ITAT (},54Y) Y,R%Y
ATATET AR (53,205,00%) (905,593,449
i ATIATTHT FIReBT WY ¥, 50Y,9¥9 534,495,399




Soalfee Hotel Limited ¥l A gfaaes 3098/ 009

qiedl gled faiads
AT ATATAD! Jiqaed

AT FIXGAT HETTHATAET,

TR SR HETAHTaesaTs FFIATH Y& ATfties AR GHHT @I T qTSaT ZTHATS
AT GRT AETd TUHT B | Telee qHeT HFAATRT Y& AT ATt Fiqaad qar 39 d9R 0190
(Q4 STETE I030) HT THIE qUH! AT THPT @ IRET TRUFT fa<irg faawves g=aqa T
TS BTHT MRATE WU G |

FEAC Eb‘l_fﬁ YA TRITAAT T8 qurer faeir gfqaes @ (Nepal Financial Reporting
Standard, NFRS) & HTIRUEH ATARHT faxird faarues qam arer y&dqa TRue § |

FREAR g1 MAfaraasd e

TR T R0U% /89 FATHHT AN AT T gar, fadiy MR 0% =7 q0 Tq @l
e auepl F=aaqed e Sfed ¥ FAMq fdes a9 @fad w7 T 41 qgeaira fadfae
TATAPT T FUNTHT TR GTeher FaTa qU=AT | BRIATHERE (FIfAS - 92) T HETHRT e
afeel AT HiedT T8 U T2 SUNTHT TH Jfg g AT IRgUhT TUATIH i) ToTet
THRS BRIATAEIE (FITS - ) T HETHRT BidTae I Ie9Tqd Tl (ABSTIT)
SO TRIIHAT &1l FATATHT TATTdee TEAR ETHT TATGT g7 TS TIIT FANTHT FaTerd
T QU EEg g T faaT |

T aTfeer aveRr TSHT ATHET ATfder ad 06 /08 HT e AR 39.02.% & 219 ATH F
(T qF 90.33% o Ffg) | AT ATIAT TAT ATATRIT FTAT AT ATTATAEF FfeTRaar 0%
=T 99 TAAE TIA ARBRA PRATHGRE (FIfag - q2) THTT P HETA hiedane Aa
3EAA gl (AFSIST) TN WAL T ST STl (AFSISA) T@dl a7
feregaamdt T9AT F=RINET gaTs ISMes JUiaal iddivad Tadl FRU qdad v ade Tl
AT TATataes S0 TUHT 90 | GEIET A1 TuH He AR 5. q,3%,%¥0.0% A (Afaedr
AqIF aT T 9,53,¥3.3R ) Wkl G ST T AdF TUHI TAATHT &, 49,03, 20 ATEA Tdhl
T (T a9 . 99,09.% A@A FH) | Alaedl ATTIF TR TG HATRT T ¥ ¥3.50 ATGH
TAATHT FHIEAT AR TUAT HFIA S R396.9% A@ ATE HATRT ASH Wbl G T 2.
R3,3¢.0% AE@ IR B | A, THIET ATMIF GUHT FFIAIHT P qUATTH G& FATHT
Aferedl AT o9 ¥, 32,20.9% AT P TAATHT ATHEAT AT AT 5. 99,20.%¥R AT & T4
ST ¥ 95,%%.90 AT "dHl &1 (T ATIE a9 ¥, 9,89, 9% ATE dqehl) |




YT aTftfer Yiqaan 309 /099

FITHIR] BIAIITR SHeTh

fa<ira fases
AMYF a0 0% /3008 AT FFAC BNFd THl THE FEATIAH qAAICHE dler A
TATSFHEE e THITH el S |

AT ATGAT

- aifies a9 qhg /A

0% /99 R0OWY /\% EIGKGE]

HA HATFRTAT 9,3%,¥0.0% | 9,53,¥3.3% | (39.0%%)

& @ 9,93,34.05 | 9,9%,25%.5% | (33.40%)

FATATATE ATRT HATRT 9¥,0Y.09 35,¥%.¥Y (%3.¥9%)

= [ ARt Y. og ©.30 | (R0.53%)

ATHL eIl HATRT 93,22.33 | 35,3%.9¥ | (R3.44%)

ATART DT AT q,%4%.03 9,50.03% | (9R.%9%)

TAE @9/ (ATRD) 9,9%. 95 £5.%3% | (93.%9%)

AT q(GePT GF HATHT 99,20.¥% | R%,20.9% | (%.43%)

G I G STSTHT T 99,R0.¥3 | 3],R0.9% | (§R.43%)

WEHR TIT GEATIES

TG EIECAA SETTHT T(AMSd REHREE I ThT FXT GRS Fooi@ T ATSET v eiid qar

TRaTfrad TUFT B, WEFR JIT TS (AFTER B
AT FINS T5F, WdTEs ¥ ARG T=qed (MICE) &leel

BT Bdd, FTedl HTST Wl U ATHFER 098, AT HRA 9deA fqerg M grT ards 74t
feetraT smiTStaT Tfvuer qualt aTfie swaRifted snfqer T amr &R R09R &7 FadedT Tgal

T THREHT ‘9% AR SMLEA9 &lde g4 S99’ (BEST MICE DESTINATION MICE HOTEL IN

NEPAL) 2T TAHTS THATT REFRATE TEATAT TUH G |

ARAHTE AYT d% HISH (MICE) 93%, JIcdTed ¥ YHRIE Jded Saard YIcden

BT B1ed, |icel HTIT @Io Q4 ATHFER 09%, AT ARG qded faab MW Rt arder 7ot
feeefTaT eaTsTaT et qualt =i AraRIftEd Ao ¥ AT TRERR R09R T ATARHT T3
T HREHT ‘9% AR IEA9H, AST TUS ATEH &idd 3 9T’ (BEST MICE DESTINATION,
WEDDING AND MICE HOTEL IN NEPAL) N ehepl TS FHATH RESEIREIN qEIAa STQ?h:f %,



Sosdiee
=

Soall-eeﬂétél Limited %<3} AT giaasd 098 /089
+* * * +* *
AYTART IS fqa1E HRIE T IHRIE (MICE) T &ee

ETHT 21, Aledl ST WISl 4R Haa<l 030 A ARTH TFIghl AT odred gre HHFISHT @Ed
AEE ¥ AFT A9 HUT T AT gRT AATSAT TRTH TIST T THREHAT “I*E AIeq [0S

JreTT sfeeAad gdd g7 AqrA” (BEST MICE DESTINATION MICE AND WEDDING HOTEL IN NEPAL)
ofiSepehl AR TFATH RERRATE FHATHT HUH B

Aredl 9% RfHer gad AT REkd
ETHT FFIATHT IR G T aldd Teh Aod AHNFHR IO A (dfee T Hrefraa,

ﬂ'ﬁﬁ?ﬂ Elr W q-%?'ﬁ- LEED (LEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN) é}lg
FIcETA FT T ararawei fesred ywiford efed gee diedr awe iR dlew AurenTr @rg
AT TRPR, T, FLh(T T ANRE IgAT HATATAIE JLHR 030 HT ¥qt fawa e feaaet
FAGTAT ‘gt AP qur et faeTeeT AT TN REER” 9 GRS AU |

FRINET, &9 T AMg TREIATE qAT ATAIHAT {qAb J1e
PRAT AT FIIS-9% H [T9qeamdl FeMRId I 2030 &I ledl g Afedr fqea qdd=e

Tfatalaesd T ATATET FTHT TATATAT HaT b Il TTAT Tk T =T T AGTAR
FIRHAT TATTHA TRTRT Te=T Tel GENAHT FHiHeb FTHAT T ATSITHT Febel  FTATT TRTH]
T | I 30%Y A faeaeswr anfds afg «. ¥ g1 ATHE TRUH B T FREAT 9279 Fiiag-9%
&1 faea WETHRT I g9 94 TFa< J0R0 AT ARTH TEq0 AT FHH a1 |

AT |AT HURT [q97 A% q*geT  (World Economic Outlook) &1 e Teamgared
PRI AT FIF8-92 P LRI (G T TATATEEAT TS TAT ATAIT RRTEE
ATURT IAMTHS, B | ITh TATGH [G9ahl 97 ATTHGTHT T8 AT ATAT TRUBT qwaT b
T Fh¥ehl LT (AT T8l TATIHIS, | ARG HET HU JEIU T ATEAR PRAT AT
FIAE-9% F TG TATTH FRU fq99 FITH T TAHT ANGF AATAAEEHT AT FTHT
Rrfaar omg faed dga= ¥ 200 ATAAT 3.R Fqerdel Fhiad g ATHAE TH G |
PRIAT AT HFfag-9% F1 HeTRI g AT fqgarsr arg ®fag Tueer qfedegar fqeae
IETIH TAREE T [TFaRTd qdeqaeaesd qddeadT aa Adfaiuees A9 Aq9m T
FST T_Taal (AFSIIT) P TIAHHAT ILH] FRUETE (997 AT Tldratges qATTATT TRTH!
3T 9 H¥eh T SATael TTHT GEbe AaEAT Gordl AUH G | ARSI SH TS Wbl Ferqur
ATER faeaegqrdl TIAT FRMAT AT Fag-92 & HETHRIR HRI TTHT 50% FTHIARES

ATE oot FIHT THATF GRebl AATTHT & |
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TR AAYTH TRGIIH THIFH] BRMAT AT Hag-1% H HeWRIEE Heh W Tded
87 FaS-9% TAh! AT Febd AT THIT T (G AW TF dA7T g | G 039 1
TEHE! (9T FHIT T =EAT T &9ar AU [9adT Hiauas Hrerarre! MT=aedrer R
T SATEITIHT Fiqehe TATE T 3w, ST FU ATTAHT FTHT SAT Fo@Te TIad FJHRTHT
A= IRgea ATSS | WeTHRIGT HRUT 9% IWMEEHT A=Ak TIaA Mecaned TS &
T AT JASHHT YA 5 AMEUHT T AbT FRIT [F99HT TIaH T ITATHT Feel@d TTHT
FAId HUH G | G 00 F FEahg [qvadqT IS AT ATEAT FEIAEEH ATTATIE
ISTETh! F@ITHT HH ATe AT 90 Jiqeraes! RRae Aue 3 |

T AR, A FeATATA Tl ATHH T 0% /00 (09, /30) B AMIF Fo&TITH TRIFAE

JEUT HTEAR kA YTeed Iaara (fefr) T s auehl qaqrar 8. 4% of g ATHA TR

B | GHIHT AITHAFT AMF FaA(hes AMIF a8 095/ 90 F1 J<AGFH TAaa"d (9T |
ATGF FALAT 09%, /30 FTAR HETHRI IRT ATMIF FHehael IR SRS ¥ MRATATs 99
qErIs g | AT favra A\ auhl dod oaifds dfg 9.3% WH @ | AR HA T
Ffag 9% F1 FRO UG A1fdF Aiatafaessr @y fawer e aid A gfaed ge =
qIAT | IRTATE JEMY HTAR AR ATMGE Ghg 3% g ATH TRUH G | ANGE q
09y /\% HT FHA AEed IR 9% el T |

AIIE I 0% /99 BN ATMIE FHEIU Fiqaad AAR ITERRT T TIT HIERIT 3030
HT=IehT HEAHT T TNehT WIET AT ¥ R% I TAATHT & 4% TEAT | HETRI, d39fie AR,
AR T, AT ¥ faiia qkd=des AMded TMacas] A ATEd Jedl @MU g |
AR AR [T9qeaTdT S| AT T (A ATaEes ATFTRT FRIT T & Il
oY ARrEe e AT TRUST B | T A1fdH Y 09 /%% 0T ThEH AR ATl 9.3%
TR ATHET ATTEEF TUAT 4%.3% HOMHE g ATHM TRUH F |

TS RS 0% =T 90 (}¥ HIE I00) TdaTE PRAT AEIHH AHAMATE FHa=A0 T+
ICTATY FTAT TRTawal (AHSTIA) UV TRHAT AT T e IAN &7, Arasfaeh Jrarand

7 ftad Far ARIaT 7aTg ISHEeHT awaTaval (AHSTST) ST A 088 HEW & (39 TS
R0R0) AT A GFAB TRl (AFSISH) ETH [9AT | THF TATAB! TIEA &7 BRAT
AIERE FIaE-9% H HEMRT & g Fwal FMSH HTLMHT TH ATHT GHT dq0  FTA

TRTH B |
0% T[T Q0 (¥ HIE 0%0) Tq 2@ HRIAT AT Hifae-92 I HETHRIH] BRI gware=] (

AHSTST) XTI HUATYT FTAET ATk THRT HUHAT BIEAR! HIAGFTET ATAAT eI
7 YEdT | IAET i TIRT F TISATAHRT G HATHT SUI% o Tdbl g T T ATMdH TIHT
PIST ARAT 49.94% T8l SMHT AT T 35.54% AT GFEUH 3 |
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giade e AT AT Td ATIEF TUH € q 09 53 FS ¥3 A6 3 TN &HA AR

TAATHT THIAT 39.0%% 2T Aled &HA 9 A % FIS ¥0 @ % AR ATRMI TWhl B |
Afereddl ATfE ATRN BIST TAT AA@TG (ARAZES) U39 @R JAATHT FHET AT A
0% /89 (309, /R0) HT 33,055 TET | YAHIST AU 3iF 3¢ (ADR) HTTIF T 206 /9%
(R095/9%) HT %. 90,039 TEH ITSHT FHEAT AFIF T 095 /99 (09 /30) AT FA 3.39%
o fiRrae a1g < Vo FTUH TEdT | URUTHERY, Afteal ATidE I Q09 /% (R095/9%) HT
FIET ATRTAN &, 43 IS ¥3 AME@ ¥O ESRebl qAATHT ATHET ATTF TUHT 8T T8 e & 39

FAS 93 @ L0 BAR FIH &l |

el AR AT T ITA B3 (RevPAR) &. %,929 aTC T ATHET T4F AT T 3354
TR B | A @I JAT IF G&7 Thepl ATRTHT T AT aUHT 5. q o 95 B Q%
A & FSR B JAATHT FAET ATF T 0198 /98 (309 /30) AT 3R.53% o NRTEE AT 3.
o3 WIS ¥Y AE@ © TAR AR JUH G | Tq AMIF TUR JAATHT AHEAT i a9
0% /98 (092 /R0) H T GLATAH! G& HATHT $.43% o (T a9 ©.5% o gig) HIH F |
TATAT FTAYRIT BRAT ATZTE FITa€-9% F1 HRTENT hfdqare e amiT Jo1er aeee
FITATY FTAT 0% =T 90 T (¥ AT 00) I U0 Th TTawal (AHSTSH) TS
QU JIfaT U ATERU SEREAET He SR RGeS | Aud ¥ favgerdt e
FRIAT AT2TE HIaE-9% T THAT hidd T4 ETdeAP! FEAGHTETHT J1g g5 TR IJcaTesITH
et Tar afae afd® avare 9 T JATRT FATSH 9% TREdS (997 | aldddl a9
Al quT AT GNGIIeT HIETHRIR (a0 J9=Tc ANTHT [GgeHT JeHEs b &
SAT9TT YT G |

gfqasel TRiqHT = snfde ade srawmee ffa T vfasger aigs

AT AMIF TT 009/95 (030 /39) FN AR 30 THIHAT BlddH & AR T a9 B

AET AATTFT FA AR 5. &Y FRS Y] A@ 30 F9RH qAATHT & 99 FIE 3 a1/ 50
FSR TEHl @ | T AP qURT R09%, AHFER 30 FHAH AAIHT PIET ARTT ¥3.59% 5!
TAATHT = AR qUHI 00 ATHFR 30 TFASR! ST AHIT & U4% TWHl G | BIAR
FiqepTST HAT FoaaR ¥ TS Ui PIST ATRT FHHT: & B3 T & ¥R WEehl g o [
el ATTIE TR Glal AATHT HHM T 90,380 T . ¥, 529 TEh! (AT | BT AEH (

FMAE qR) FI HRTHRIF! FRU QT TIAT TRIA] (AHSIST) Bl AT, Bl ATA
TiafataesaT gidarg ¥ AMLT TIT AR Fals ISHEH FATATHT Ffqaed AMUH T
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AT AT (=T AT faea T qoia: iaam TEH FRO =1 ATfdE T |1 eFafordr 9f aor
SHATH B ool g AHebehl PRI hel ATFRTAA] 8T8 ATTH 3 |

PRI qERE FIMAS-9% F1 HEWAN (qeaeardt sqa7r Bfaqare a9 favasr ad gemesd
TRl (ARSISH) Bl IUT FATAFIT TTeehlcl (G99 AATHAB] ANIF qRGYT Flag-9%
HIETHTR! FRO THEATIRT & 33, |

FRIET AT B T AMIF GednT T faehreT T of qFT 020 {1 YHIRTA THl T3l
iR giqasd aqar fava adaesr aifde afvged ammdr € 3fg 9% wfedr @ g
A= T Tebd TEATHREE TINTHT T | [T9aAT BRAT ATEE HIfaE-9% HETHRIG! HeArdd
FRvaR 1w TEepTel (a9 Ad=Tal AT aRged ¥ JHITH Miafataesar fFeaesy § e
FIHT AMEATAT HTRT TS, |

FRISTT =T Bae AaEATIFEEH TAFHT TIT T EIEAGEHT BST ATI(THT ARMHT %
o srcatfaes afg &9 | TEWE FET ARG =9 Elddes J9 AT ToaTaTHT ATSahFl
T 9T el BIEASe FoATATHT ATIH TART ATLATHT Ighl B | AT Blded HISewehl HRTHT
T el af qRade ATTRT S T GoAd: BISTHl AW R @eblg | A=Ritad T @ (

~ ~

=) Eled FATAFeedId METHT TAT e TATATHl AT Ty EIA BISTEEHT HUHI TGl

FRU EICALT (a9 U ATIFHT [q9 d¥a<ey giaeqdl g4 Jad qedradl g IRoHeasd &1

fafs Ao e AT =T ST S Hed SOAT AT Iiavadl e aeATadr @ | A1 99

FRUEE &l ISP T ATIFIH] ThRIHE THTE Tl AT AT 9T HATRTHT THT
gfded THTE 99 FRS, | TN FFAATR AT AHT TIT AT FHE Sl T
qEATad YiqeRe THE Iq U T qOd g ¥ R SATadIE HIeT A NRaaars
IATEI TH TIT HATRTATS AT HTIH TEAR! (R ATATSH I JIIhH A dee ATATI
T AT TUST TREEH] AT JAT [AEARHT FId g q9T T=R TEARHAT JAI=d T beard
T, SPad I9R SATERITITET AT Aled Bldhl HIAH GAHH IR [Eedrers FUATedfaar

o

TR e, ETEAPT (T IAEH ¥ FATEEh! (HEeay TRIAT T8 STHHT AT BT JaT ¥

raaTesd! ExdR ¥ @9 AR (A=A Al AATIER] AT qTAFT T PRAT A
FIfaE-92 H HETHRI T 97 EEARl HATHT ATg T IJUTFEE dh birad 0T
HIATIH & T HFIATA Al ARATHR] HTATIIA T TeBAT TRAT TEAbH 3 |

fored amm ¥ qded aRuEe HTH T FHITH PRMAT ATEd Hliag-9%, H ATETATIS HRI
faeaet A1 AT SFed 91 M= B | T9 Aaesdl TR 9T FFeRAT aadT
TS, T TIaA FHOE fqorm gfeaas iy Ferafeara wied Toees, qaree THared ¥

fereaa=irar TT=aes ATT GAHHT AT FACHT T ATl T | TIeT T ATAT SFAT Siguer
FATCHEEH FRU TASAR! T FRT g7 qaag, T, 1 e FArdewars arear T8 a9ers
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AT AT A 8T ATIP] TTHT TR T T 968, | (499 AT T qhad qRuga

AR IEeT Yiqaed dTaR [qeaHT =aRiftad qddsd ATaNTHTH @A ¥3% F FRE

ATTHT B A9 ATAKE T ATATTHTD! J&IT 3¥% o EIehl S |

FAAE qrrtere e ufeaer ¥ yfaee affeafasr fa=r gfva weeesr =R qar 9deq
TAIRIAEEH] AAA  HARIEEATS (S UG TAaAAS Ufeiehl SaeaTHT qeaerel 19
FAIFATS ATIHT RO THH AN TRFRETH HedT0 FEdRT T FHITH! fAar

AEALAFAT G |
ATHT FRAHT ATATHT ATANTHA TATafeeeT dNT A% A@THT q0F 9@+ 99 ([R=d g | qardy
AT ahed ATARE qUad Trqedes I &A1 qded TrAAeH Ticdh AENHA & AZHbb!

G |

@A ¥ FEATH ARAFR TEREH AT TRATHT, ATAEE AT G& T Afer anferepréres, Fer,
7 AT UTH ATRERT I T ATLT TS | bifgg 9% oo 79 g%e 9quafs ¥
QITEH GHUTHT AN AR TUYLES, GIHRESH] LT Trdedeshl Jagr T T Tddhdl AN Tera
ST AT T qH Feald g Iae |

faed M7 ¥ Te IRUGH AU THE Gfqaed AR A9 098 A1 AIAH FA AEEd

IATETAAT TUEA T ATAHT TS ARTEH €.9% I@epl [9d7 T AT T U &AT 9.9% &l
IEHT qig AURT 94T | FIR, A R09% AT FATAR! G & A&l ASAT e
TSRMEDT &.%% Pl ANTETH T {947 | TheT &l TATTAT IR 90.3% g AR Iqded
TRITH |

T ATfdF FfghT TIeT HEAIU ATAREIRT &7 | 9HeA F i faeprertae erewenr anfi
U3al HecdIu ¥ H&T AT Hd Wkl | a9y, T 9ded &bl faprer ¥ faaresr o
FEITFAT TEhl G | STl 9T ATIF gfg T faeprerept fqetrs v ardt At ars+ I%1s, |

&I 9T FATH TR A0 TS

FFIATA ETCAHT TEATEEATs I TR JaT a1 qraaress! e fazar qar w@r=fd =
SrERITed UM aHITH TTET AT TUAT STHT HFIATA aldeAh! [eATdd [aiT Tadhl aaqHa
AT Febel HId (ST ANTH) Tlechl AATIHE Gaar TrI= g9 T47 I3 TAT THRIE TACE
oo T R qFI W

FFIATA FAT JAT FradTEser! faEdR T91 TR T FA FI=R T TG | Tq aF HFIwTer
g foT sTaeepT <97 T T TRl BISTETR TR T 18 TR TAT G =T
[T AT TET T TGN TATHT FISTEER TR T HF IJF a9 9 TR EBAS, |
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FFATR! HOT HegR TFEAT F6T, T TAUGR FH Al qa7 el aR T Aqrd A=

@R F& A A &7 A5 qHAH0, faedR qur R 9 J991 EH g | a9
qATTHTT faedR qar TR T H TR AT A RIEREsdals aud gal JT qdr
Rl Heed i T 741 WY {4 QAT Tiee Fer 3 |

qfstirraer fafagereor

qQredl gheariafe fafres

FEIATS FISHTUS] FUAHT ATMEY FFAATH] dSHIH TIT FUE AT TANT EICAEE goaTeld
T SATAATATE T 9T TR AR FFIATHT UI: TTHE Tehl HFIAT U, 053 AT
Feafua diedl gfaaraie fafids AT Ui @rfusd qerdsd FFIET SRIIEr WS
FEIHTRT AT YITHT FUAT Y, FRAE AN TR B, | TART AT, AT TETTH FHEIAT,
AT eferatfafe fafadears & 4 F€ % @@ Yo TR FUAT 99 §TAX GfSTHT =T e
i dfsfaaerer anf qeeTr TiEde 3 |

dredr Rraferw gideq qom fad w. f&

FHIAIR] YETTh FHAI, Tled! efaeTiare fdafade arhd o= el SAaands FURe FITE
AT ATEEE TR TEHbTIHT ATl FITh AT HHIAT Fled! RTAfhA alded a9 RAEH .
for. TRATIAT T AATENTSS ¥ GERTHT Bldd (AHIO 9T G TR AT AT T G
qredr Rrafew 2deq e RErdd wifae dedl efeaartads fafadgs®r AraT aai U ae
F4T IS, ATARE ATH TIT TSHTE A= ATRAT T EICAe® Foarad g, | ITh Gled
geqertadl fatide a9 FFAIel IO @A AR FehH HFIAT 8 | §5 HFIAIal (o=l
IS AT UF (ATSI) TERIAT] ST Avaid Aledl J%vg, Aledl a¥dvg MHaY T
ledl e e Tedl & |

qredl Rrafes ardeq aar g yrgve fafadsal @iad, SAmEedad qoa7 FeTaTHl Il

TSR] AT TR TARTSSTHT HATedd «ie (LEED) YHITeR qi= d) W aled “dleal
aee iR FoTeTsS, qURHHT HETETAT WEH B |

fEHT SraAUAd TR &Y YrEHe [ATHESHT HUhT THIh GFe=aHT

FFATA [EATT Zradadel qra? %9 T, {1, HIRd HTehefl qra FF+T yigde fdrads (BKPC)
[T A TR S |

wferedtt w1 TUEEAT Joot@ TRY FAR ARl TaveTgd ©ed 06 J9ME 9§ T (Y
YT R09Y) T T Fraiavg IS ATTHT BT 9T Agus FAfq 093 @R 4 TF (4 TS
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R09%) ATTHT YTkl faafa iR feward wdl dreme did Hell q&HAT SATUh 9T srere
FRUT &ATTIET AUHA ATeA AU FFI9T fo3qd Icared w1 aws ARl 9T | F2ta, difqear did
FrefT Gﬁ'ﬁ;ﬂljf IIATSTATERT ( Upper Bhote Koshi Hydroelectric Project (UBKHEP) gﬂﬁiﬁrur FT

QU BIAT TR T Gebob! & T HICHILNT TMEAREI3Y Weel 0% T8 & T (R fe@wr 309%)
Mg FFETaE AT (3 IHET I 9% T Gobbl @ | & Aol qrax HFl JgHe
fafrase Saares el faaqa Afted fasqa foear fMeeR amgfd 11T wais |

ATfaer Wie el STAfae@ qArTAIS] FE ARTE FIAT & FGearane datgd |/l fauy
FEI TNUHT §aT Ih BFIAIA [Aebe TTACTAT el AT FaaRo T FhIb ATAHRT G
faust 7 |

FFI] STAATAT AT T TG TACT

faryareamdy FqwT TR 9% BiAUHT PRIATAGIT Hag - 9 F1 HETHRIPT TIATRIT THITEH
PR fa99 AT AATA FIHT =TT T AT fahaar Wi IRIEHS | T, FArRT, I,
QT GURE THIH! S0 AAfE ST Tahed TAF Tehl | T q=Ried GEES T
TUHT G, THATM RidATaT AFTH AT ATHTAE G AT FTIHT AIATST T ATAAT 3,
QTHTNTF LR TRUMTHEERT AN FeedTs ATFT O¥dT 5 fafid Teque arearcnes aifeafa g,
AT T AT ATEARTHA Gatead ¥ PRAT 9Ieeddl GHA Biad 97 T AEane g 9fq

T A, AT ¥ TS &7 AT A0 FTAT SO T AT AATATHT WG | FrAE - 9%
BT HETHIA AATAHT T & ¥ FANEEATS AYATRIT FTHAT TATAT Il HUATI Iram T
QI JARTHRT ATEAT ATk G T AANIR ST STHT AT 3 |

foed amar ¥ 9¥ed uiRus (WTTC) # (Baseline Report) HTIRHT Yl SATIRHT [qeaHT
FRIMET T HATAHA AT 50 YiqeTdel g1 AT T&qU el G | IRumHeawy, faeg

TAASTE g9 ATIHT TS 9.9 @I AHCHT SAT 1 H1ET & G ATHI TRUIE, AT faea

HITA dh FA UYEed IAEd (GDP) HT AT 3¥ @d FAHNH TR Tl & ATH
TP, |

faea ST AU faepe sEmmatys 9iqasT [EE 00 ATAR FRMIHAIRET HaE - 9% I
HETHATh] FicTehel TATEh TRUTHERY 9 092, A &l AEeH IAE (GDP) #1 dfg & ©
ST Y&kl TAATHT a8 00 AT AUTAH %A e Ided (GDP) &1 qig .5 Freraar
fafrd & a @ TRUST B | TERN, FaT &l ATGF ghg a8 a9 R00R qighl qadwar
ATH 2T q IIqd T g T FE TRURE, |



®
I..n.ﬁ
L3

e

ostlisa®

n._:gir..'_--
Y

%53} ATy giaasd 098 /009 §oaltfe}k£el Limited
TITA TIPS BRIATATSI (FIAE-9% ) TETHRIRT ATATITT TehITehl HehadTd ATETATHT T
qRGYT THEH AT TET HETHIRIHT el THTd Heedqu TTHT Soole TErs; | PRIATATE
(FIFAE - 9%) AETHRIER! SRS TAT AT Fiqeha THAE AT el & ATH
TR 3 |

HETATHT THHI RidTaT AFTHT AN TATAHT TEATIT T=Tawal (AHSTIT) 0% = 90
TA (ATE ¥, 0%0) T AT TRAT T AT HH GIIT T AT 008 ST § T (TS 39,
R030) AT =T TUHT 4T | A7 Trarawa] ATGREHT FANAHT BiATATE T AT THTAHT
ft d° o9 Hecaqul AThed HaRd q9T AAdTHes (MRArl | BaS-9% HeTAT TehITe
ATATRTT AR FeheaTe ATATET IT AARATAT Th dehieATeh! T |

AT TeR{de |iwaddl, Wiee eRe? TFIE] TAes, JRIE JaT aifHe s T qAehids
fafaerdrer afvuer JeBfdepr aRaT™ U 39T &1 | quTd, qdeE JHONIEe b Te qadh
TEAT FEIITHT 99 I9T 9% Ui TPl | I9THT FEST ATAATT JUIedl, gars Sga= &
IR, Tk HAT AT JaTe qAT AIehl qesl 9o, T4 qdash Twqeq T A7 TSIH @rofl

JIT ATGH FYAT TIeA YIR JOR Jfai T&T qe8sdrg 9oad aq139 AT a9 qde
SRl Jel®T FLgAT ARTATH TATIH G |
FHFAEIRT NS TUT ATIANRD a7 ATTHNAF Gl

TUTET AMTAF ATHT AATTHT FFIAR] FHARGEETR] TH= SIS GHER, RTEYY ¥ Ik
TEH WEY TEEN RISTE | TF g9 UM A HAwAIT T FHAREE 9 qRATE AT
RISl ATATARVHT ATH{EE FTHT BIEART AT TEATEedTE JTeed ATee -+l TANT Ta

FTACETATHN AT Ik ¥ U AT Y& T q4T Bleaars HaHTe el AN Farad 313

FATIH FTHRT T I 7 HTIHT AT Tebsle T TREAY Tehrd T A& JeT w1 qIred
T |

el FATT Aledl IRARET FHU FHAREEH] JTah ATTHAE FARTATT FiThT
giaagdr, TR ¥ FALTIT ATHTH] TefheAl ehld U HATH! FIEAT, THATH, FeraT
T FEX L JEETA TF HIATHT YT T IICATHT (MR 9 3EaT, HTaaerd], Thd GednT, ¥
THAT AT TG AT &R 40 =T I06% gl ITT ATATRIT SAACHATS ANATE FqHT

THAT T I I TATSS FHFIATHT IITHT Fel IT FOR AN TCTET S Tl FHT G <
foreae & 7 |
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T USI=iTEe, (0T $haRes ¥ WRIHAEIAES, IT9d TeTwil ¥ UIRATS~AES, AXehT<l [Tt
At T AT Memeed T dca= T, qHYR ¥ AETE HaQaE T EH B |
FEAT ARSI ATAATIT =T “DAheh THGAT a1 TeNiaaa (91an)’ i gfeqarfeds
I BT | FEAT J9T JANT AT HeTHoeh! THNUS TeT &l 99 8ldd Tiaaad qh
qATS (BTH), AT =R A% FHY, T ARG JANT AT T8, J9Td A= IANT AT 9,
Tt foree IRNT ATMTsa Y, T A9 Sfe=ae A FHFAl dehedlsl Bl g 9 Wehl B |

FHAR GH, AT qHe, AT FaE-9% HETHRT TbIT JHATE IATHL

FFIAT FTAGFITETHT AEATTH TRUTH I T STl ATTIRT & HBIAETHT SATqF A=A R
T T FEEE AT Gredqifed T wHERI ¥ 2ATaeqad fq= Fataq oA af awithar
TEFEE (IR [HIETE®) =T e ATTH] T | HFATd FHARIEEATS HTACETATRT AT
fr=e gRTETTT gere e AT @ | e Fifae 9% HETHRIG! GHIAA 9 FHEEedrs
Qe qARAT AIATE FIAAFIET T Graed] GReqcHs IIT AIATST qIT qRaa ¥ @
TIerehd AT GEa=d] HNIHAGT el qifdd q97 qeiegd &dre g qRefl I @red
THEIg ATIEUSES Tl T et [auaAr Meeae RIeqor Y& =T | Hifag 92 HeTHIH
TEAAT WG 95 FaT yaTe T qAT AT FIHT FE AT GEIRIAT Fol - AR
FSTHATRT T AT AURT [qTIHT GHT FIAR=T 7T |

FIIATHT FHATEH! FTGETAT, FTATFITEAH! ATATARIT TAT FFIAT TicTebl ANTETT TAT AT
THIT F<T ITARIAIR] Teehl AT TIRIAHETTHIAESATs AT TRTSH ITSaT I
qiafaars srenfu® TRedr d9fd T B | FaE 42 TGS AT Twara=l aer
qr qe=el fauH faatde aRfEfaAr FFA Il FHEAREE 9T TWEl 9 q9dT ¥
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PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co. = {3

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Soaltee Hotel Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020), the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020), and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Nepal, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 2.1.3 (e) and 4.21 to the financial statements, which describes the
possible effect of uncertainties relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Company's financial
performance as assessed by the Management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above
matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition
(Refer Note 2.2.16 “Revenue” and Note 3.15 of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of service (hereinafter Our audit procedures included the following:
referred to as “Revenue") is recognized at . Assessed the appropriateness of the

the time of delivery of services it is _ Company's revenue recognition accounting
probable that the future economic benefits policies in line with NAS 18 (Revenue) and
will flow to the Company and that revenue tested thereof.

and associated costs incurred or to be

incurred can be reliably measured. = Evaluated the integrity of the Company'’s

general information and technology control
environment and tested the operating
effectiveness of IT application controls over |

124, Lal Colony Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel: +977 01 4410927, +977 01 4420026, Fax:+ 977 01 4413307 pkf.trunco.com.np

PKF T.R. Upadhya & Co. is a member firm of the PKF International Limited family of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibililf or lid ility
for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm or firms.



Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue is key driver of the business and
recorded in complex IT system &
environment. Likewise, revenue also
includes high number of individual low
value transactions therefore in respect of
services provided there is risk that revenue
is recorded inappropriately relative to the
provision of the underlying service.

Therefore, due to significant risk
embedded in revenue we have identified
revenue recognition as a Key Audit Matter
for the current period.

Revenue recognition, the detailed process
flow of sales, segregation of duties for the
process followed, automated steps and
manually intervened processes.

» Performed detailed analysis of Revenue,
analytical testing with sales information filed
with tax authorities, testing the timing of its
recognition and accuracy of the amounts
recognized and verification of the supporting
information of the Revenue transactions.

= Tested a sample of revenue transactions in
relation to the provision of services and
assessing them against relevant supporting
documentation to determine income has
been appropriately recognized.

* Reconciling revenue records in Financial

accounting systems with property
management system.

Property, Plant & Equipment and Investm

ent Property

(refer Note 2.2.6, 2.2.8, 3.1 and 3.3 of the financial statements)

There are areas where management
judgement impacts the carrying value of
property, plant & equipment and
investment property and their respective
depreciation or amortization rates. These
include the decision to capitalize or
expenses costs, the annual asset life
review: the timeliness of the capitalization
of assets and the use of management
assumptions and estimates for the
determination or the measurement and
recognition criteria for assets retired from
active use. Due to the materiality in the
context of the balance sheet of the
company and the level of judgement and
estimates required, we consider this to be
as area of significance.

We assessed the controls in place over the fixed
asset, evaluated the appropriateness of
capitalization process, performed test of details
on costs capitalized, the timeliness of the
capitalization of the assets and the derecognition
criteria for assets retired from active use. In
performing these procedures, we reviewed the
judgements made by the management including
the nature of underlying costs capitalized:
determination of realizable value of the assets
retired from the active use, the appropriateness
of useful life of assets. We have observed that
the management has regularly reviewed the
aforesaid judgements and there are no material
changes.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Report of Board of Directors (BOD) including annexures
to the BOD's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¥ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.




From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the statement of financial
position as at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020), the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
period then ended have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2063, are in agreement with the books of account of the Company and proper books of
account as required by law have been kept by the Company.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from
our examination of the books of account of the Company necessary for the purpose of our audit,
we have not come across cases where Board of Directors or any employees of the Company have
acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the accounts, or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss or damage to the Company relating to the accounts in the Company.

Shashi Satyal
Partner .,

PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 3 Poush 2077 (18 December 2020)

UDIN: 201222CA00008cavcC
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1.
2.1.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

a)

b)

General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of Company
Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of Nepal (SEBON) and
listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office of the Company and the
principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its incorporation more than
50 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with five star quality hotel facilities from the
date of commercial operation. SHL has invested in two subsidiaries namely H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt.
Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business. Through Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly
owned subsidiary, it has also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. with 24% share in
the company.

Holiday Inns (China) Limited, an Intercontinental Hotels Group (IHG) owned company operates the 282
saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe, Club to Suites under the Hotel Management Agreement with the
Company. The Company also operates a LSG Sky Chef - Flight Catering Unit under a Technical Assistance
Agreement with LSG Catering Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors on 18 December
2020 (03 Poush 2077) and has recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal.

Basis of Measurement
These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the following material
items:

- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value

- Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.

- Other long term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the obligation.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements. It also requires management to
exercise judgement in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies. The company makes
certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and judgements are
continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual result may differ
from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are:

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting period. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and
also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency
and operating costs.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows.
This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply,
economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash
flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact on the carrying value of assets.
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c) Recognition of Deferred Tax

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate 21.25% (Previous Year
21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred
tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

d) Other long term employee benefits

Significant judgement is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of
unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination of
employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate, rate of
increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors considered may change depending
on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the company.

e) Estimation uncertainty due to COVID-19
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared Covid-19 outbreak as a pandemic. Responding
to the potentially serious threat that this pandemic has to public health, The Nepal Government has taken
a series of measures to contain the outbreak, which included imposing multiple ‘lock-downs’ across the
country, from 24 March 2020, and the operations restriction was applicable to the hotels till 21 July 2020.
The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID - 19 pandemics have posed
challenges to all the businesses of the company. Lockdown guidelines mandated closure of hotel operations
and cessation of air traffic and other forms of public transport. This has resulted in low occupancies /
shutdowns of hotel.
The hotel was majorly shut down entirely during the lockdown phase as expect for very limited operation
of flight catering and operation few of isolation rooms. With the lifting of the partial lockdown restrictions,
the hotel has started re-opening after establishing thorough and well-rehearsed safety protocols. The hotel
expects the demand for its services to pick up albeit at a slower pace after lockdown was lifted and recovery
in business to be driven by domestic leisure tourism, vacations, domestic business travel and limited
international travel.
The company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources,
profitability, liquidity position, prospect possible alternatives for financing arrangements, supply chain and
demand for its services. The company stands at comfortable liquidity position to meet its commitments for
the year ended 15 July 2020. The company does not foresee any disruption in materials supplies for the
hotel operations.
The company has also assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on the carrying value of property, plant &
equipment, intangible assets, investments, trade receivables, inventories, and other current assets
appearing in the financial statements of the company. In developing the assumptions and estimates relating
to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the company as at the
date of approval of these Financial statements has used internal and external sources of information and
based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of these assets.
The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval
of these financial statements and the company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to
future economic conditions.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the company’s
functional currency.

2.2. Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The areas where
significant judgements and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and their
effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

2.2.1. Standalone financial statements

This financial statement is the standalone financial statement of the company. Consolidated financial
statement as per NFRS 10 is prepared separately.
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2.2.2

2.2.3

ii.

iii.

Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the company and its associates are recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the associate's profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the company's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Recognition

The company initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and Measurement

Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the entity’s
business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine whether the
financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)
or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL).

— At amortized cost: Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments for which the Company has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They are
initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method
less any impairment losses.

— At fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss
if the company manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on its fair
value. Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

— At fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified in any of the above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are
recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and
changes therein, which are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value
reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified
to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.

Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial
assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which
the Company neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expired.
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iv. Offsetting
The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Amortized cost measurement
The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

vi. Fair value measurement
Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market values
represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid market. Where quoted
market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.

vii. Identification and measurement of impairment
Financial assets
At each reporting date the Company assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor
- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor
- observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and amount the
management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and appropriate
estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received are provided
allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its net
worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance account
against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement of OCI. Interest on
the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. If an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease
in impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in case of available for sale investment).

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairing loss is
reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized through OCI.

2.2.4 Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of Profit or
Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the extent they reverse gains
previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

2.2.5 Foreign Currency

Transactions entered into by the company entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency" is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary
assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs
of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the Company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP). At
the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value
Company has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its original
cost.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until they
are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management of the company has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years

Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

There are assets whose useful life is complete on the date of first time adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074)
which are still in use. Management expects that such assets shall be used for three more years; accordingly,
the remaining amount of assets on the date of transition to NFRS is depreciated in subsequent three years.

2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software
Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives.

2.2.8 Investment Property
The Company holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
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2.2.9

2.2.10

2.2.11

2.2.12

2.2.13

2.2.14

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change in its
use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item and its fair value
is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to retained
earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Salvage Value

Company has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original cost.

Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other items of
investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.
Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

Investments

Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model for
managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are measured at
amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss.
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Changes, at initial
recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive that forms
part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are charged to Profit or Loss.

Inventories

Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in acquiring
the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly liquid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items with
the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.

Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering comparable
market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of loan is charged to
profit or loss for the period of staff loan.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The company’s equity shares are classified as
equity instruments.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits of the
company comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as per
the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and the
Company.
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2.2.15

2.2.16

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays pre-defined amount to Employee Provident Fund and does not have any legal or
constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to Provident fund are charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees. The
Company accrues 8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with Labor Law of Nepal
till Falgun 2076 while the Company has deposited Employee Gratuity in SSF from Chaitra 2076. The
amount presented in financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present
value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

Income Tax
Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in
subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the reporting
date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is calculated reasonably
in accordance with the provisions of Income tax Act as per management assumption and bet judgement.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. The Company is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as
per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058. Additionally, for FY 2076/77, the Finance Act 2077 has declared
additional rebate of 20% on tax liability to hotel business affected by COVID-19, creating overall rebate of
32% on general tax rate. Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the company for current fiscal year is 17%
(previous year rate was 21.25%).

Revenue

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added Taxes, Civil
Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Service Charges. Revenue from LSG Sky Chef -Flight Catering Unit sales is stated net of Civil Aviation Fee
& Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.
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Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to the Hotel
Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labour Rules as per the previous agreement between

HAN and representatives of the Employees Union.
Dividend

Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain the amount and
there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain privilege membership fee and training fees,

which are insignificant to the total revenue.
2.2.17 Expenses

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the

obligation and rationality of such obligation.
Management Fee

Management fee payable to Holiday Inns (China) Limited for hotel operation is based on fixed percentage of

the adjusted Gross Revenue and Gross Operating Profit as specified in the Hotel Management Agreement.
License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to LSG Catering Hong Kong Limited, to operate the
Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of LSG Sky Chefs’ is based on a fixed percentage of the Net
Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.
2.2.18 Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to

use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements entered
into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the

basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at LSG Flight Kitchen. The
lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as operating lease
expenses, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line method, in line with
para 33 of NAS 17: Leases.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and infrastructures
to third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

2.2.19 Provisions

The Companyapplies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for
non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists.
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2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating

cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
The Company classifies a liability as current when:
* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
2.2.21 Segment Reporting

The Company’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company's management,
which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. All
transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with intra-segment
revenue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment

are included in determining business segment performance.
2.2.22 Government Grant

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to grant and the grants will be
received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which

the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
2.2.23 Operating Cycle

The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets

Amount in Rs.

Particulars | Software | Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2075 13,051,443 13,051,443
Addition - -
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 13,051,443 13,051,443
Addition 1,886,211 1,886,211
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 14,937,654 14,937,654
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2075 11,241,766 11,241,766
Charge for the year 882,358 882,358
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 12,124,124 12,124,124
Charge for the year 778,791 778,791
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 12,902,915 12,902,915
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2075 1,809,677 1,809,677
At 31.03.2076 927,319 927,319
At 31.03.2077 2,034,739 2,034,739

Note 3.3: Investment Property

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Freehold Land | Building | Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2075 4,707,287 109,516,634 114,223,922
Addition - 56,630,178 56,630,178
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2075 - 74,693,590 74,693,590
Charge for the year - 1,046,523 1,046,523
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 - 75,740,113 75,740,113
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 - 77,719,236 77,719,236
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2075 4,707,287 34,823,044 39,530,332
At 31.03.2076 4,707,287 90,406,699 95,113,987
At 31.03.2077 4,707,287 88,427,576 93,134,864
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate effective to the Company
21.25% (Previous Year 21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences
giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be

recovered.
Amount in Rs.
q Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2076 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2077
Fixed Assets (23,966,045) (12,310,884) - (36,276,929)
Gratuity Provision 55,664,769 (2,035,358) - 53,629,411
Provision for Leave 24,270,980 1,305,814 - 25,576,794
Trade and Other Receivable 6,718,678 1,062,500 - 7,781,178
Total 62,688,382 (11,977,928) - 50,710,454
q Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2075 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2076
Fixed Assets (12,382,800) (11,583,245) - (23,966,045)
Gratuity Provision 53,114,795 2,549,974 - 55,664,769
Provision for Leave 22,138,654 2,132,326 - 24,270,980
Trade and Other Receivable 6,716,978 1,700 - 6,718,678
Total 69,587,627 (6,899,245) - 62,688,382
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
Particulars | 31.03.2077 | 31.03.2076
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
At Fair Value Through OCI 283,899,180 283,898,980
Total 283,899,180 283,898,980
Current
At Amortized Cost 80,000,000 90,000,000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
At Fair Value Through OCI
Total 80,000,000 90,000,000
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost (A) 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Term Deposit 80,000,000 90,000,000
Total Investment at Amortized Cost 80,000,000 90,000,000
At Fair Value Through OCI (B)
Investment in Subsidiaries
Ie-IaICs)oaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. (99,500 shares of Rs. 100 9,950,000 9,950,000
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (2,500,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 250,000,000 250,000,000
Advance for Investment in Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 12,640,000 12,640,000
Sub-total 272,590,000 272,590,000
Investment in Associates
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited (2,600 shares of HKS 1) 16,538 16,538
Less: Allowance for Impairment (16,538) (16,538)
Sub-Total - -
Investment in other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. (100,000 shares of Rs. 11,309,180 11,308,980
100 each)
Sub-Total 11,309,180 11,308,980
Total Investment through OCI 283,899,180 283,898,980
Proportion of voting rights
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. 73.63% 73.63%
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100% 100%
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited 26% 26%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 5.97% 5.97%

The net worth of H I Soaltee Management Co. Ltd. is negative since many years and accordingly,
impairment has been accounted.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 2,992,083 2,992,083
Deposits 3,427,464 3,722,464
Loans and Advances to Employees 49,556,592 35,397,323
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 2,342,996 1,512,234
Total 65,370,554 50,675,523
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 58,319,135 43,624,104
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 193,654,762 225,814,901
Less: Allowance for Impairment (29,565,887) (24,565,887)
Trade Receivable-Net 164,088,875 201,249,014
Other Receivable
Loans and Advances to Employees 13,715,243 32,061,729
Loans and Advances to Other 6,033,967 25,271,484
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 7,907,740 7,229,735
VAT Recoverable 10,330,274 19,669,757
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 790,981 1,636,459
Total Other Receivable 38,778,205 85,869,164
Total 202,867,080 287,118,178

Additional information on Other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.
Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of
90 days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade Receivable included in

Current Receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Stores and Spares 9,388,916 11,918,313
Provision, Beverage and Others 22,720,971 22,937,641
Uniform and Linen 17,624,454 34,808,046
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 19,017,905 27,731,770
Total 68,752,246 97,395,770

Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Cash in Hand 2,201,601 2,006,422
Balances with Bank 207,714,396 193,147,401
Total 209,915,997 195,153,823
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

31.03.2077

31.03.2076

Authorized Share Capital

150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,500,000,000 I 1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000,000,000 ‘ 750,000,000
Subscribed and Fully Paid up
84,257,973 Shares of Rs.10/- each 842,579,730 732,675,370
Total 842,579,730 732,675,370
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Balance at the beginning of the year 73,267,537 66,606,374
Add: Bonus Issue 10,990,436 6,661,163
Balance at the end of year 84,257,973 73,267,537
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 1,309,181 1,308,981
Retained Earnings 754,805,141 835,578,211
Total 814,601,510 895,374,380
Note 3.11: Loans and Borrowings
Particulars 31.03.2077 | 31.03.2076
Non-Current
Bank loans
Secured- Hire Purchase 2,601,024 3,746,371
Total 2,601,024 3,746,371
Current
Current Portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,223,356 1,161,908
Total 1,223,356 1,161,908
Note 3.12: Employee Benefits
Particulars 31.03.2077 | 31.03.2076
Non-Current
Gratuity 319,639,442 329,414,263
Less: Plan Assets (67,265,742) (67,462,410)
Net Gratuity Liability 252,373,700 261,951,853
Accumulated Leave 120,361,383 114,216,378

Total 372,735,083 | 376,168,231
Current

Salary and Wages Payable 21,612,648 18,550,702
Bonus Payable 13,992,287 38,391,314
Total 35,604,935 56,942,016
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.13: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)
Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Advance Income Tax 36,613,613 86,783,293
Income Tax Liability (15,902,793) (78,002,937)
Total 20,710,820 8,780,356

Note 3.14: Trade and Other Payable

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 16,803,661 13,788,789
Unclaimed Dividend 20,795,451 9,078,785
Total 37,599,112 22,867,574
Current
Sundry Creditors 158,709,933 156,483,135
Other Payable
Advances Received 90,632,297 94,527,613
Civil Aviation Fee 27,242,547 -
Management Fee 4,208,002 2,555,982
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 393,211 989,489
Service Charge 22,264,683 47,808,817
Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 8,938,372 7,817,951
Other Liabilities 67,861,819 48,003,317
Total 406,584,893 384,520,333

Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.

Note 3.15: Revenue from Operation

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Room 311,347,423 534,342,033
Food 799,069,674 1,136,519,383
Beverage 35,496,562 52,743,322
Cigar and Cigarettes 495,025 628,875
Telephone 70,071 190,837
Laundry Income 5,346,392 7,808,738
Beauty Parlor - 130,430
Swimming Pool, Health Club, Guest Membership Fee - 1,684,252
Business Centre 117,700 109,170
Total 1,151,942,847 | 1,734,157,040
Note 3.16: Other Income
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Premises Rental Charge 26,325,633 31,977,130
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 4,619,240 4,585,201
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 19,029,760 9,219,153
Miscellaneous Receipts 15,933,794 18,975,076
Income from Service Charge 20,733,269 31,472,247
Dividend Income - 500,000
Profit on Sale of Assets 584,201 2,095,046
Exchange Gain 2,840,975 -
Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF) 11,429,057 -
Reversal of Provision for Gratuity 10,570,091 -
Unclaimed Balance Written Back - 1,347,656
Total 112,066,020 100,171,509

Additional information on Government Grant towards SSF is provided in Note 4.19
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.17: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Food 196,965,468 287,549,636
Beverage 9,121,826 13,784,769
Cigarettes 152,350 212,370
Total 206,239,644 301,546,775

Note 3.18: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Salary and Wages 228,549,105 270,059,262
Allowances 84,921,801 115,106,356
Festival Allowance 24,707,436 23,322,234
Overtime 9,106,009 14,381,603
Employees Meal 19,184,745 26,263,856
Soaltee Staff Welfare 4,540,067 5,373,590
Gratuity 18,566,486 18,585,224
Leave 12,561,696 11,833,952
Provident Fund 23,262,207 21,820,967
Clinic Expenses 1,962,965 1,132,550
Amortization of Staff Loan 2,150,598 4,735,935
Bonus 13,992,287 38,391,314
Total 443,505,402 551,006,843

Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4 .a.
Note 3.19: Operating Expenses

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Linen 19,906,762 9,303,312
Laundry Supplies 3,481,665 4,526,790
Crockery & Cutlery 4,647,491 2,397,354
Silverware 5,074,915 1,473,529
Cleaning Supplies 6,392,432 9,124,431
F & B Paper Supplies 7,812,471 9,815,901
Guest Supplies 9,819,281 19,330,124
Water & Water Treatment 7,291,330 17,791,246
Garden Maintenance 28,050 308,373
Pest Control 2,098,800 2,277,000
Waste Removal 658,500 895,700
Power and Fuel 93,595,204 129,655,816
Repair and Maintenance 26,334,287 39,160,209
Total 187,141,188 246,059,785




Soalfee Hotel Limited ¥l A gfaaes 3098/ 009

SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.20: Other Expenses

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Rental Charges 1,045,560 1,017,420
Travelling 5,067,243 7,413,021
Transport and Conveyance 18,455,161 25,056,031
Audit Fee 550,000 525,000
Legal and Professional Fees 6,170,497 4,720,825
Directors' Meeting Fees 547,057 1,182,349
Licence & Taxes 20,909,155 32,199,456
Bank Charges 6,203,465 9,983,203
Annual General Meeting Expenses 874,831 858,574
Commissions 3,728,824 4,314,115
Insurance 18,901,813 22,645,808
Communication Expenses 4,602,991 7,243,321
Printing and Stationery 3,465,073 5,858,684
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 14,370,366 20,405,513
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 10,983,444 17,146,661
Training and Conference 2,257,586 3,152,514
Books and Newspaper 237,213 414,359
Membership & Subscription 1,483,483 2,005,802
Security Services 5,376,389 7,073,255
Uniform Expenses 2,320,743 3,976,793
Entertainment 1,708,278 739,436
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 6,059,644 4,219,370
Banquet Expenses 12,175,225 15,530,231
Kitchenette Expenses 2,639,804 2,771,371
Exchange Loss - 1,915,126
Corporate Social Responsibility 1,120,421 2,990,110
Miscellaneous 9,888,393 10,448,680
Total 166,142,659 220,807,028

Note 3.21: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by

weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. If the number

of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization, bonus issue or

share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per

share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

The Company has issued bonus shares in previous years. Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per shall

has been done as stated above.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit for the year 112,042,147 299,010,958
Number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 1.33 3.55
Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit for the year 112,042,147 299,010,958
Weighted average number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 1.33 3.55
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.22: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values are determined according
to the following hierarchy:

The Company has used fair value model for measurement of its financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair
value hierarchy levels presented represent the available inputs considered to arriving at the fair value of
category of financial assets/liabilities.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data
(accounting value) and considered if there exists factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book

value of assets or liabilities.

Amount in Rs.

As at 31.03.2077 Carrying Amount | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 258,052,238 258,052,238
Investment 80,000,000 80,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 209,915,997 209,915,997
Total At Amortized Cost 547,968,235 547,968,235
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 283,899,180 283,899,180
Total Financial Assets 831,867,415 - - 831,867,415
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 444,184,005 444,184,005
Loans and Borrowings 3,824,380 3,824,380
Total Financial Liabilities 448,008,385 - - 448,008,385
As at 31.03.2076 Carrying Amount | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 327,593,589 327,593,589
Investment 90,000,000 90,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 195,153,823 195,153,823
Total At Amortized Cost 612,747,412 612,747,412
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment | 283,898,980 | | | 283,898,980
Total Financial Assets | 896,646,392 | - | -| 896,646,392
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 407,387,907 407,387,907
Loans and Borrowings 4,908,279 4,908,279
Total Financial Liabilities 412,296,186 - - 412,296,186
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital
The Company has single class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member
holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid
up equity share capital.

4.2 Dividend
Dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.
Board of Directors have not proposed any bonus shares and cash dividend for the year 2076-77 (previous
year approved 15% bonus shares and 11.31578947% cash dividend).

Particulars Bonus Shares Cash Dividend
Proposed for 2076-77 - -
Number of shares -

Paid for 2075-76 (Amount) 109,904,360 82,908,002
No. of shares 10,990,436
4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings

a. Share premium
The Company had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by the company in
excess of its face value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in
Company Act 2063.

b. Other Reserves
The Company had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on
this reserve since then.

c. Retained Earning
Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Company uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders.

d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that
are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

e. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of the company was revalued. For the first
time adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at
deemed cost which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits

a. Gratuity

Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which Company was
required to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary of
the staff. Changes in Labour laws has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined
contribution plan whereby Company is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration as
gratuity to employee with effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. The Company has enrolled itself and it's
employees in Social Security Fund (SSF) in Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making
contribution towards Employee Gratuity in the fund.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Opening Liability 329,414,263 317,491,891
Payment Made (13,011,014 (6,662,852)
Provision Made 18,566,486 18,585,224
Reversal of Excess Provision (10,570,091) -
Government Grant towards SSF for Gratuity (4,760,202) -
Closing Liability 319,639,442 | 359,414,263
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b. Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability

is as follows:

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Opening Liability 122,289,649 104,181,901
Service Cost 3,472,909 7,084,177
Interest Cost 7,656,926 7,229,749
Plan Amendment - -
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (6,641,410) 5,593,297
Benefit Paid (6,416,691) (1,799,475)
Closing Liability (A) 120,361,383 122,289,649
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 120,361,383 114,216,378
Deferred Liability (A-B) - 8,073,271

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as

follows:
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Discount Rate 6.43% 6.43%
Rate of compensation increase 6% 6%
Average expected future service 13.5 15
Average duration of liabilities 16.5 17

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for

calculating the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Effect on:
- Service Cost (210,828) (913,985)
- Interest Cost 1,190,810 1,032,820
- Leave Liability (11,435,257) (12,582,707)

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for

calculating the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Effect on:
- Service Cost 254,876 1,113,886
- Interest Cost (1,191,440) (1,032,820)
- Leave Liability 13,503,921 14,932,148
Lease

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2 years. The future

minimum lease rental payment to be made is as follows:

Period 2076-77 2075-76
Up to one year 1,050,000 1,045,560
One to five years 1,102,500 4,182,240
Above five years - 648,476
Total 2,152,500 5,876,276

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets on
lease. Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

Period 2076-77 2075-76
Up to one year 33,509,181 36,382,104
One to five years 190,894,061 120,225,566
Above five years 351,517,808 470,367,452
Total 575,921,050 626,975,122

The Board of Directors of the Company has decided to grant waiver for the lease payments of lessees
whose business was significantly and adversely affected by COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent

government imposed lockdown.




Soalfee Hotel Limited ¥l A gfaaes 3098/ 009

4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, the Company has provided Rs. 1.12 million (previous year Rs. 2.99 million) (1% of net
profit after tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises
Act 2073.

4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Company's Board and senior management has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

i. Market Risk

In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues, the
tourism sector looks for bright future. However there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the company through
years of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

Credit Risk

The company provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it enjoy credit facility
from it creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of company debtors' ability
to pay the company within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly there exist the credit risks
to that extent. The company through its experience over the many years has been managing such
risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular recoverability position
by the management and the Board.

e
.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Company has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. The
Company monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.

The company current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the
liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.

iv. Operational Risk

The Company has been in operation since more than 50 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for
the activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the company is required to also follow specific
operating guidelines issued by its franchise. Company believes that the controls implemented by the
company have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also carries out
Control Self Assessment at reasonable interval where the company scored high level marks placing
it as one among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Company's revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation
so be on the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation will
contribute certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will
have the risk of impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange
rate fluctuation has generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as
well. The Company has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for
substantial period so as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.
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4.8 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the company comprises of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence on the company, subsidiaries of the company and Board of Directors.

a. Subsidiary Companies
The Company has made investment in two subsidiary companies. The Company has presence on
the Board of these two companies in proportion of its shareholding. Company provides office space
to the two subsidiaries on operating lease. Other than this, there is no any transaction with
subsidiary companies.

Name of Subsidiary Holoding i Rental Charge Ou.tstanding balance
%o This Year | Last Year | This Year | Last Year
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. 73.63
Lease Rental Income 66,667 66,667 - -
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100
Lease Rental Income 66,667 66,667 - -

b. Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Company is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of the company. This company has four
representatives in the current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667
(previous year Rs. 66,667) to SHL as operating lease rent. There is no outstanding balance at the
year end.

c. Other related entities
i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)
Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of the company. NAC has one
representative in the Board of SHL.
SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Particulars Revenue (in million) Receivable (in million)
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year
Flight Catering Services 211.79 182.03 52.77 31.71

ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

d. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of the Company. The composition of
Board on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ganesh Bahadur Chand Director Nepal Airlines Corporation
M. Venkatesh Gomatam | Dcc Fosned on | ol e vement epal 1
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder

Alternate Director to Mr.
Mr. Vivek Bhalla Venkatesh Gomatam
(Resigned on 27.09.2020)

Holiday Inns Investment (Nepal) Ltd.
(Nominee Withdrawn)

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 15,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending
each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee
meetings during the year amounts to Rs. 0.55 million (previous year Rs. 1.18 million).
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e. Key Management Personnel

The company's key management personnel are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL and
General Manager of Soaltee Crowne Plaza.

Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 29.68 million (previous
year Rs. 37.49 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman also includes the
performance incentive paid based on the profit of the Company.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend
Total unpaid dividend amounted to Rs. 20.79 million (previous year Rs. 9.08 million).

4.10 Trade and Other Receivable

4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee Recoverable from Airlines
Civil Aviation Fees levied on In flight catering services provided on international flights by the company
to three different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted to
Rs 7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million ) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under
Non-current Trade and other receivables.

4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways
Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the reporting
date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency proceedings. In
October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the Committee of
Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways & confirmed by
Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the proceeding and
business revival is yet to be known.

4.11 Lien on Company's Assets
The company current and non-current assets where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to
bankers providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan
against a vehicle only amounting to Rs. 3.82 million (previous year Rs. 4.90 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability
The Company recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result
of past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate reflection in the
current financial year.

4.13 Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by the company amounted to Rs. 2.9 million (previous year Rs. 2.9
million).

4.14 Litigations or legal cases
i. Income tax Matters
Revenue Tribunal has decided in company's favour against the appeal made relating to assessment
pertaining to FY 2068-69. However, Revenue Office has filed appeal in the Honourable Supreme
Court. Decision of such appeal is still pending. The company is of the opinion that there would not
be significant obligation relating such appeal being considered at the Court.

ii. Assessment status

The Company has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2071-72 and additional demand of tax Rs. 1,837,680
made by Large Taxpayers Office. The management considers no significant obligation that would
arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to
accumulated profit as per its practice.

The Company has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of
expenses on Self Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2072-73 and additional demand of tax
Rs. 2,413,333 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management
considers no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any
tax claim will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

iii. Casino Royalty
Pursuant to the litigation case filed by the company against Government of Nepal for its demand of
Casino Royalty for the financial year 2005/06 (2062 /63) till November 2012 (24 Kartik 2069) from
the company instead of then Lessee, Nepal Recreation Centre Pvt. Ltd, the verdict was issued in
favour of the company from Honourable Supreme Court of Nepal. Accordingly, the management
considers that no further obligation arises under such demand by the GON for such Royalty and
no provisions for the additional claim has been made.
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4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

iv: Arbitration

The company has filed a writ petition in the Supreme Court of Nepal challenging the judgement of
Honourable High Court, Patan for the appointment of arbitrator in a case filed by the Nepal
Recreation Centre Pvt Ltd. for the appointment of arbitrators pursuant to the Casino Lease
Agreement. The matter is sub-judice before the Honourable Supreme Court. Another case is
pending in the Honourable High Court, Patan in pursuant to appointment of Arbitrator.

v. Legal cases

The company has filed a few cases for recovery of dues from some debtors in the course of its
regular business.

Capital Commitment
Capital contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 2.62 million
(Previous year Rs. 110.92 million).

Letter of Credit
There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.

Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour law
in previous fiscal year, this fund is no longer required, and no provision has been made. The Company
has paid Rs. NIL (previous year Rs. 10 million) during the year out of this fund to a separate entity called
Employee Housing.

Operating Segment

Management of the company has considered the total operation to be segregable into two operating
segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Core hotel business segment: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related

recreational facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major segment.

ii. Flight catering segment: The Company provides flight catering services to airlines. This is different
nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and related facilities

to meet its standards.

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows:

(Amount in millions)

Operating Segment I(-)I;:':ltion g&f:rgng Total
Revenue
- Food 371.49 427.58 799.07
- Room 311.35 311.35
- Beverage 33.39 2.11 35.50
- Others 3.47 2.56 6.03
Interest Income 23.65 23.65
Other Income 88.41 88.41
Total Revenue 831.76 432.25 1,264.01
Expenses*
Consumption Cost 103.90 102.34 206.24
Employee Benefit Expenses 291.85 151.66 443.51
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 251.24 130.57 381.81
Depreciation and Amortization 87.39 4.56 91.95
Finance Cost 0.58 0.58
Total Expenses 734.96 389.13 1,124.09
Segment Result 96.80 43.12 139.92
Income Tax 27.88
Profit for the Period 112.04
Segment Assets 2,372.78 140.75 2,513.53
Segment Liabilities** 2,513.53
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*  Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while
common segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.

**  Segment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of
segment liability.

4.19 Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF)

The Government of Nepal (GoN) announced that it would contribute 31% of the basic salary to Social
Security Fund (SSF) on behalf of the registered contributors (20% employer’s contribution and 11%
employees) as a relief to employers and employees impacted during the countrywide lockdown period
due to COVID-19. The Company started contributing to SSF after its enrolment in Chaitra 2076 and
qualifies for the Grant related to Income. Accordingly, the Company has recognized such contributions
of Rs. 11.43 million in employee’s SSF for the month Baisakh, Jestha and Ashad 2077 as Government
Grant and recognized the corresponding amount as employee cost in the financial statements.

4.20 Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company.
The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the company is based on management’s
judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic needs. We consider
the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on
total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Company's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. The Company's will take appropriate steps
in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company’s goal is to continue to be able
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.

4.21 Going Concern
Impact of COVID-19

The Company faces significant uncertainties due to COVID-19 which have impacted the operations of
the Company adversely starting from the month of March 2020 onwards. Management has assessed the
impact of existing and anticipated effects of COVID-19 on the future cash flow projections and has
prepared a range of scenarios to estimate possible financing requirements. Nonetheless, management is
confident of its ability to generate cash inflows from operations and also raise long term funds to meet
its obligations on due date.

Also refer note 2.1.3 (e) Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19.
Based on aforesaid assessment, management believes that as per estimates made conservatively, the
Company will continue as a going concern and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise the
carrying amount of its assets as on 15 July 2020.

4.22 Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.



PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co. PKF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Soaltee Hotel Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020), the consolidated staternent of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020), and
their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 2.1.3 (e) and Note 4.21 to the financial statements, which describes the
possible effect of uncertainties relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Parent Company’s financial
performance as assessed by the Management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above
matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in in
our report.

Key Audit Matters
matter

How our audit addressed the key audit [
1

Revenue recognition
(Refer Note 2.2.16 “Revenue” and Note 3.16 of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of service of Parent Our audit procedures included the following:
Company (hereinafter referred to as "“Revenue’) | «  Assessed the appropriateness of the Parent
is recognized at the time of delivery of services Company’s revenue recognition accounting
when it is probable that the future economic policies in line with NAS 18 (Revenue) and
benefits will flow to the entity and that revenue tested thereof.

and associated costs incurred or to be incurred

can be reliably measured. = Evaluated the integrity of the Parent

Company’s general information and
technology control environment and tested
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Revenue is key driver of the business and
recorded in complex IT system and
environment. Likewise, revenue also includes
high number of individual low value transactions
therefore in respect of services provided there is
risk that revenue is recorded inappropriately
relative to the provision of the underlying
service.

Therefore, due to significant risk embedded in
revenue we have identified revenue recognition
as a Key Audit Matter for the current period.

the operating effectiveness of IT application
controls over Revenue recognition, the
detailed process flow of sales, segregation
of duties for the process followed,
automated steps and manually intervened
processes.

= Performed detailed analysis of Revenue,
analytical testing with sales information filed
with tax authorities, testing the timing of its
recognition and accuracy of the amounts
recognized and verification of the supporting
information of the Revenue transactions.

= Tested a sample of revenue transactions in
relation to the provision of services and
assessing them against relevant supporting
documentation to determine income has
been appropriately recognized.

= Reconciling revenue records in Financial

accounting systems with property
management system.

Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property
(refer Note 2.2.6, 2.2.8, 3.1 and 3.3 of the financial statements

There are areas where management judgement
impacts the carrying value of property, plant &
equipment and investment property and their
respective depreciation or amortization rates.

| These include the decision to capitalize or
expenses costs, the annual asset life review: the
timeliness of the capitalization of assets and the
use of management assumptions and estimates
for the determination or the measurement and
recognition criteria for assets retired from active
use. Due to the materiality in the context of the
statement of financial position and the level of
judgement and estimates required, we consider
this to be as area of significance.

We assessed the controls in place over the fixed
asset, evaluated the appropriateness of
capitalization process, performed test of details
on costs capitalized, the timeliness of the
capitalization of the assets and the
derecognition criteria for assets retired from
active use. In performing these procedures, we
reviewed the judgements made by the
management including the nature of underlying
costs capitalized: determination of realizable
value of the assets retired from the active use,
the appropriateness of useful life of assets. We
have observed that the management has
regularly reviewed the aforesaid judgements
and there are no material changes.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The management of the Group is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Report of Board of Directors (BOD) including annexures to
the BOD's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

- Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
.decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

.= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.




From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of 2 subsidiaries, “Hl Soaltee
Hotel Company Pvt Ltd and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd" whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs 292.68 million and net assets of Rs 292.35 million as at 15 July 2020 and net profit of Rs 1.91
million and net cash inflows amounting to Rs 1.83 million for the year then ended. These financial
statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 8 October 2020 and 16 October 2020, respectively. Those
reports have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements in so far as it relates to the accounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, are based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020), the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2063, and are in agreement with the books of account maintained by Parent Company
and proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries included in the Group including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and records of the Parent Company and the reports of the other auditors.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from our
examination of the books of account of the Parent Company and the audit reports issued by other
auditors necessary for the purpose of our audit, we have not come across cases where Board of
.. Directors or any employees of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries have acted contrary to the
provisions of law relating to the accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage

Shashi Satyal
Partner 4

PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 3 Poush 2077 (18 December 2020)

UDIN: 201222CA00008EUF Xk
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of
Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of Nepal
(SEBON) and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office of the
Company and the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its
incorporation more than 50 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with five star
quality hotel facilities from the date of commercial operation. SHL has invested in two subsidiaries namely
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business.
Through Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary, it has also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels
and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. with 24% share in the company.

Holiday Inns (China) Limited, an Intercontinental Hotels Group (IHG) owned company operates the 282
saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe, Club to Suites under the Hotel Management Agreement with the
Company. The Company also operates a LSG Sky Chef - Flight Catering Unit under a Technical
Assistance Agreement with LSG Catering Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements is prepared by consolidating the financial statements of Soaltee
Hotel Limited (the Parent or SHL), H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary with 72.63% holding)
and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (100% Subsidiary), collectively stated as “the Group” hereinafter. The Group’s
principal activity is to invest in hotel industry. The Group has invested hotels in Kathmandu and
Nepalgunj.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors
on 18 December 2020 (03 Poush 2077) and has recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1. Basis of Preparation

2.1.1. Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

2.1.2. Basis of Measurement
These consolidated financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the
following material items:
- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value
- Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.
- Other long-term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the

obligation

2.1.3. Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires
management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The Group
makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are
continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual result may differ
from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are:

a) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment
Management of each company reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and
equipment in each year. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the
assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including
relative efficiency and operating costs.

b) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of
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c)

d)

)

discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated
commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates
and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned
factors could impact on the carrying value of assets.

Recognition of deferred tax

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Group.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate. Deferred tax assets
are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the
management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Other long term employee benefits

Significant judgment is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of
unused /accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination
of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate,
rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors considered may
change depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the Group.

Estimation uncertainty due to COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared Covid-19 outbreak as a pandemic.
Responding to the potentially serious threat that this pandemic has to public health, The Nepal
Government has taken a series of measures to contain the outbreak, which included imposing
multiple lock-downs’ across the country, from 24 March 2020, and the operations restriction was
applicable to the hotels 21 July 2020.

The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID - 19 pandemics have
posed challenges to all the businesses of the Group. Lockdown guidelines mandated closure of hotel
operations and cessation of air traffic and other forms of public transport. This has resulted in low
occupancies / shutdowns of hotel.

The hotel was majorly shut down entirely during the lockdown phase as expect for very limited
operation of flight catering and operation few of isolation rooms. With the lifting of the partial
lockdown restrictions, the hotel has started re-opening after establishing thorough and well-rehearsed
safety protocols. The hotel expects the demand for its services to pick up albeit at a slower pace after
lockdown was lifted and recovery in business to be driven by domestic leisure tourism, vacations,
domestic business travel and limited international travel.

The Group has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources,
profitability, liquidity position, prospect possible alternatives for financing arrangements, supply
chain and demand for its services. The Group stands at comfortable liquidity position to meet its
commitments for the year ended 15 July 2020. The Group does not foresee any disruption in
materials supplies for the hotel operations.

The Group has also assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on the carrying value of property, plant
& equipment, intangible assets, investments, trade receivables, inventories, and other current assets
appearing in the financial statements of the Group. In developing the assumptions and estimates
relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Group
as at the date of approval of these Financial statements has used internal and external sources of
information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of these assets.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements and the Group will continue to closely monitor any material
changes to future economic conditions.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Group’s functional

2.2.

currency.

Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The
areas where significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements
and their effects are disclosed in relevant areas.
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2.2.1. Basis of Consolidation
Where the Group has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies
of another entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities, it is classified as a subsidiary. The
consolidated financial statements present the results of the Group and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) as if
they formed a single entity.

Consolidation of financial statements of subsidiaries has been done in line with NFRS 10: Consolidated
Financial Statements. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements are
combined line by line by adding the like items of assets, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and
the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated. All intra group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group are eliminated in
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. SHL has opted for carve out alternative accounting
treatment issued by ICAN relation to use uniform accounting policies for like transactions in
consolidation of financial statement. Under the carve out alternative treatment, the investment made in
associate by SHL’s fully owned subsidiary is measured at cost instead of measuring it using equity
method.

2.2.2 Associates
Profits or losses arising on transactions between the Group and its associates are recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the associate's profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

Investment in associates of the subsidiaries are recorded at cost in line with the carve out issued by ICAN
for alternative accounting treatment as described in note 2.2.1.

2.2.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

i. Recognition
The Group initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

ii. Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets
The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the
entity’s business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine
whether the financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (‘FVOCT) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL)).

— At amortized cost:
Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments for which the Group has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They are initially
recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method less any impairment losses.

— At fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such
instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on its fair value. Attributable
transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

— At fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified in any of the
above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured at
fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and changes therein, which are recognized in
other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an
investment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to retained
earnings.
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Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.

iii. Derecognition
Financial Assets
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial
assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained
earnings.

Financial Liabilities
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expired.

iv. Offsetting
The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Amortized cost measurement
The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

vi. Fair value measurement
Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market values
represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid market. Where
quoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.

vii. Identification and measurement of impairment
Financial assets
At each reporting date the Group assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:
— significant financial difficulty of the debtor
—  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor
— observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and amount the
management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and appropriate
estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received are provided
allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its net
worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance account
against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement of OCI. Interest
on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. If an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in case of available for sale
investment).
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If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairing loss
is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized through OCI.

2.2.4 Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the extent they reverse
gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

2.2.5 Foreign Currency
Transactions entered into by the Group entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency" is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary
assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP).
At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value
The Group has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its original
cost.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until
they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management of the Group has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years

Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

There are assets whose useful life is complete on the date of first time adoption of NFRS (1 shrawan 2074)
which are still in use. Management expects that such assets shall be used for three more years;
accordingly, the remaining amount of assets on the date of transition to NFRS is depreciated in
subsequent three years.
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2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software
Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives.

2.2.8 Investment Property
The Group holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change in its
use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item and its fair
value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to
retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease income, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line method,
in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Salvage Value
Group has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original cost.

Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other items of
investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.
Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

2.2.9 Investments
Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model for
managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.
Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are measured at
amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss.
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Changes, at initial
recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive that forms
part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are charged to Profit or
Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories
Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly liquid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items with
the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.
Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering comparable
market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of loan is charged to
profit or loss for the period of staff loan.
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2.2.13 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The Group’s equity shares are classified as
equity instruments.

2.2.14 Employee Benefits
Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits of SHL
comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as per the
Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and the
Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL pays pre-defined Provident Fund benefit to Social Security Fund (SSF) (prior to Chaitra 2076
provident fund were contributed to employee provident fund) and SHL does not have any legal or
constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to Provident fund are charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees. SHL accrues
8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with the Labor Law of Nepal till Falgun
2076 while SHL has deposited Employee Gratuity in SSF from Chaitra 2076. The amount presented in
financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present
value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

2.2.15 Income Tax

Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in
subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the reporting
date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is calculated reasonably
in accordance with the provisions of Income tax Act as per management assumption and best judgment.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. SHL is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as per the
provisions of Income Tax Act 2058. Additionally, for FY 2076/77, the Finance Act 2077 has declared
additional rebate of 20% on tax liability to hotel business affected by COVID-19, creating overall rebate of
32% on general tax rate. Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the company for current fiscal year is 17%
(previous year rate was 21.25%).

2.2.16 Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the group
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added Taxes, Civil
Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.
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Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Service Charges. Revenue from LSG Sky Chef -Flight Catering Unit sales is stated net of Civil Aviation Fee
& Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.

Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to the Hotel
Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labor Rules as per the previous agreement between
HAN and representatives of the Employees Union.

Dividend
Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain the amount
and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain privilege membership fee and training
fees, which are insignificant to the total revenue.

2.2.17 Expenses
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.

Management Fee

Management fee payable to Holiday Inns (China) Limited for hotel operation is based on fixed percentage
of the adjusted Gross Revenue and Gross Operating Profit as specified in the Hotel Management
Agreement.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to LSG Catering Hong Kong Limited, to operate the
Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of ‘LSG Sky Chefs’ is based on a fixed percentage of the Net
Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.

2.2.18 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the group has determined whether the arrangement contain lease
on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at LSG Flight Kitchen. The lease
rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as operating lease
expenses, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line method, in line with para
33 of NAS 17: Leases.

Group has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and infrastructures to
third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as
operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line method,
in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

2.2.19 Provisions
The Group applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for non-
financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists.
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2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification

2.2.21

2.2.22

2.2.23

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Group classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Group classifies a liability as current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Segment Reporting

The Group’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company's management
of the Group, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with
intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated with
each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

Government Grant

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to grant and the grants will be
received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Operating Cycle
The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Software Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2075 13,051,443 13,051,443
Addition - -
Disposal /Transfer - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 13,051,443 13,051,443
Addition 1,886,211 1,886,211
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 14,937,654 14,937,654
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2075 11,241,766 11,241,766
Charge for the year 882,358 882,358
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 12,124,124 12,124,124
Charge for the year 778,791 778,791
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 12,902,915 12,902,915
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2075 1,809,677 1,809,677
At 31.03.2076 927,319 927,319
At 31.03.2077 2,034,739 2,034,739

Note 3.3: Investment Property

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Freehold Land Building Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2075 4,707,287 109,516,634 114,223,922
Addition - 56,630,178 56,630,178
Disposal /Transfer - - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2075 - 74,693,590 74,693,590
Charge for the year - 1,046,523 1,046,523
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2076 - 75,740,113 75,740,113
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 - 77,719,236 77,719,236
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2075 4,707,287 34,823,044 39,530,332
At 31.03.2076 4,707,287 90,406,699 95,113,987
At 31.03.2077 4,707,287 88,427,576 93,134,864
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate. Deferred tax assets are
recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management
believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Amount in Rs.

. Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2076 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2077
Fixed Assets (23,966,045) (12,310,884) - (36,276,929
Gratuity Provision 55,664,769 (2,035,358) - 53,629,411
Provision for Leave 24,270,980 1,305,814 - 25,576,794
Trade and Other Receivable 6,718,678 1,062,500 - 7,781,178
Total 62,688,382 (11,977,928) - 50,710,454
5 Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2075 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2076
Fixed Assets (12,382,800) (11,583,245) - (23,966,045)
Gratuity Provision 53,114,795 2,549,974 - 55,664,769
Provision for Leave 22,138,654 2,132,326 - 24,270,980
Trade and Other Receivable 6,716,978 1,700 - 6,718,678
Total 69,587,627 (6,899,245) - 62,688,382
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
Particulars | 31.03.2077 [ 31.03.2076
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI 273,149,180 273,148,980
Total 273,149,180 273,148,980
Current
At Amortized Cost 90,000,000 100,000,000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI - -
Total 90,000,000 100,000,000
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost (A) 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Term Deposit 90,000,000 100,000,000
Total Investment at Amortized Cost 90,000,000 100,000,000
At Fair Value Through OCI (B)
Investment in Associates
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited (2,600 shares of HK$ 1) 16,538 16,538
Less: Allowance for Impairment (16,538) (16,538)
Net investment - -
Soaltee Sibkirm Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 261,840,000 261,840,000
Sub-total 261,840,000 261,840,000
Investment in other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 11,309,180 11,308,980
(100,000 shares of Rs. 100 each)
Sub-total 11,309,180 11,308,980
Total Investment through OCI 273,149,180 273,148,980
Proportion of voting rights
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 24% 24%
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited 26% 26%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 6% 6%

The net worth of H I Soaltee Management Co. Ltd. is negative since many years and accordingly, impairment
has been accounted.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2077 | 32.03.2076
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 2,992,083 2,992,083
Deposits 3,427,464 3,722,464
Loans and Advances to Employees 49,556,592 35,397,323
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 2,342,996 1,512,234
Total 65,370,554 50,675,523
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 58,319,135 43,624,104
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 193,654,762 225,814,901
Less: Allowance for Impairment (29,565,887) (24,565,887)
Trade Receivable-Net 164,088,875 201,249,014
Other Receivable
Loans and Advances to Employees 13,715,243 32,061,729
Loans and Advances to Other 6,033,967 25,271,484
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 7,907,740 7,229,735
VAT Recoverable 10,330,274 19,669,757
Others 464,656 377,287
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 790,981 1,636,459
Total Other Receivable 39,242,861 86,246,451
Total 203,331,736 287,495,465

Additional information on other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.

Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period

90 days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade receivable included i
Current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

of

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Stores and Spares 9,388,916 11,918,313
Provision, Beverage and Others 22,720,971 22,937,641
Uniform and Linen 17,624,454 34,808,046
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 19,017,905 27,731,770
Total 68,752,246 97,395,770
Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Cash in Hand 2,201,601 2,006,422
Balances with Bank 227,868,627 211,469,634

Total

230,070,228

213,476,056




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Soalfee Hotel Limited ¥l A gfaaes 3098/ 009

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

31.03.2077 |

31.03.2076

Authorized Share Capital

150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,500,000,000 |

1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000,000,000 | 750,000,000
Subscribed and Fully Paid up
84,257,973 Shares of Rs.10/- each 842,579,730 732,675,370
Total 842,579,730 732,675,370
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Balance at the beginning of the year 73,267,537 66,606,374
Add: Bonus Issue 10,990,436 6,661,163
Balance at the end of year 84,257,973 73,267,537
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 1,309,181 1,308,981
Retained Earnings 766,691,020 845,943,340
Total 826,487,389 905,739,509

Note 3.11: Non-Controlling Interest

This represents portion of minority shareholders' interest (26.37%) in the financial statements of HI Soaltee

Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd.

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Share Capital 3,563,600 3,563,600
Retained Earnings 4,308,522 3,917,532
Total 7,872,122 7,481,132
Note 3.12: Loans and Borrowings

Particulars 31.03.2077 \ 31.03.2076
Non-Current
Bank loans
Secured- Hire Purchase 2,601,024 3,746,371
Total 2,601,024 3,746,371
Current
Current portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,223,356 1,161,908
Total 1,223,356 1,161,908
Note 3.13: Employee Benefits

Particulars 31.03.2077 \ 31.03.2076
Non-Current
Gratuity 319,639,442 329,414,263
Less: Plan Assets (67,265,742) (67,462,410)
Net Gratuity Liability 252,373,700 261,951,853
Accumulated Leave 120,361,383 114,216,378
Total 372,735,083 376,168,231
Current
Salary and Wages Payable 21,612,648 18,550,702
Bonus Payable 13,992,287 38,391,314
Total 35,604,935 56,942,016
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.14: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2077 31.03.2076
Advance Income Tax 37,203,022 87,476,269
Income Tax liability (16,418,342 (78,508,597)
Total 20,784,680 8,967,672
Note 3.15: Trade and Other Payable

Particulars | 31.03.2077 | 31.03.2076
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 16,803,661 13,788,789
Unclaimed Dividend 20,795,451 9,078,785
Total 37,599,112 22,867,574
Current
Sundry Creditors | 158,833,893 | 156,727,911
Other Payable
Advances Received 90,632,297 94,527,613
Civil Aviation Fee 27,242,547 -
Management Fee 4,208,002 2,555,982
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 393,211 989,489
Service Charge 22,264,683 47,808,817
Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 8,938,372 7,817,951
Other Liabilities 67,922,605 48,049,117
Total 406,769,639 384,810,908
Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.
Note 3.16: Revenue from Operation

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Room 311,347,423 534,342,033
Food 799,069,674 1,136,519,383
Beverage 35,496,562 52,743,322
Cigar and Cigarettes 495,025 628,875
Telephone 70,071 190,837
Laundry Income 5,346,392 7,808,738
Beauty Parlor - 130,430
Swimming Pool, Health Club, Guest Membership Fee - 1,684,252
Business Centre 117,700 109,170

Total

1,151,942,847

1,734,157,040

Note 3.17: Other Income

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Premises Rental Charge 26,192,299 31,843,796
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 4,619,240 4,585,201
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 21,163,720 11,419,976
Miscellaneous Receipts 15,933,794 18,975,076
Income from Service Charge 20,733,269 31,472,247
Dividend Income - 500,000
Profit on Sale of Assets 584,201 2,095,046
Exchange Gain 2,840,975 -
Others 546,655 443,867
Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF) 11,429,057 -
Reversal of Provision for Gratuity 10,570,091 -
Unclaimed Balance Written Back - 1,347,656
Total 114,613,301 102,682,865

Additional information on Government Grant towards SSF is provided in Note 4.19.




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.18: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Soalfee Hotel Limited ¥l A gfaaes 3098/ 009

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Food 196,965,468 287,549,636
Beverage 9,121,826 13,784,769
Cigarettes 152,350 212,370
Total 206,239,644 301,546,775
Note 3.19: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Salary and Wages 228,549,105 270,059,262
Allowances 84,921,801 115,106,356
Festival Allowance 24,707,436 23,322,234
Overtime 9,106,009 14,381,603
Employees Meal 19,184,745 26,263,856
Soaltee Staff Welfare 4,540,067 5,373,590
Gratuity 18,566,486 18,585,224
Leave 12,561,696 11,833,952
Provident Fund 23,262,207 21,820,967
Clinic Expenses 1,962,965 1,132,550
Amortization of staff loan 2,150,598 4,735,935
Bonus 13,992,287 38,391,314
Total 443,505,402 551,006,843

Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a.

Note 3.20: Operating Expenses

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Linen 19,906,762 9,303,312
Laundry Supplies 3,481,665 4,526,790
Crockery & Cutlery 4,647,491 2,397,354
Silverware 5,074,915 1,473,529
Cleaning Supplies 6,392,432 9,124,431
F & B Paper Supplies 7,812,471 9,815,901
Guest Supplies 9,819,281 19,330,124
Water & Water Treatment 7,291,330 17,791,246
Garden Maintenance 28,050 308,373
Pest Control 2,098,800 2,277,000
Waste Removal 658,500 895,700
Power and Fuel 93,595,204 129,655,816
Repair and Maintenance 26,334,287 39,160,209
Total 187,141,188 246,059,785
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.21: Other Expenses

Soaltee Hotel Limited
x  x Kk Kk  *

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Rental Charges 1,045,560 1,017,420
Travelling 5,067,243 7,413,021
Transport and Conveyance 18,460,761 25,061,681
Audit Fee 651,700 615,400
Legal and Professional Fees 6,170,497 4,777,325
Directors' Meeting Fees 547,057 1,182,349
Licence & Taxes 20,909,155 32,349,456
Bank Charges 6,203,465 9,983,203
Annual General Meeting Expenses 874,831 858,574
Commissions 3,728,824 4,314,115
Insurance 18,901,813 22,645,808
Communication Expenses 4,609,988 7,245,581
Printing and Stationery 3,465,073 5,858,684
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 14,370,366 20,405,513
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 10,983,444 17,146,661
Training and Conference 2,257,586 3,152,514
Books and Newspaper 237,213 414,359
Membership & Subscription 1,483,483 2,005,802
Security Services 5,376,389 7,073,255
Uniform Expenses 2,320,743 3,976,793
Entertainment 1,708,278 739,436
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 6,059,644 4,219,370
Banquet Expenses 12,175,225 15,530,231
Kitchenette Expenses 2,639,804 2,771,371
Exchange Loss - 1,915,126
Corporate Social Responsibility 1,120,421 2,990,110
Miscellaneous 9,894,088 10,503,260
Total 166,262,651 221,166,418

Note 3.22: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares. If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a
capitalization, bonus issue or share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation
of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

SHL has issued bonus shares in prior periods. Calculation of basic and diluted earning per has been done

as stated above.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit for the year 113,953,887 300,655,264
Number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 1.35 3.57
Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit for the year 113,953,887 300,655,264
Weighted average number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 1.35 3.57
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SOALTEEHOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.23: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data
(accounting value) and considered if there exist factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book
value of assets or liabilities. Such factors did not exist as per management evaluation and accordingly,
book value has been considered as fair value.

Amount in Rs.

As at 31.03.2077 | Carrying Amount | Level1 | Level 2 | Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 258,516,894 258,516,894
Investment 90,000,000 90,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 230,070,228 230,070,228
Total At Amortized Cost 578,587,122 578,587,122
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 273,149,180 273,149,180
Total Financial Assets 851,736,302 - - 851,736,302
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 444 368,751 444 368,751
Loans and Borrowings 3,824,380 3,824,380
Total Financial Liabilities 448,193,131 - - 448,193,131
As at 31.03.2076 | Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 327,970,876 327,970,876
Investment 100,000,000 100,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 213,476,056 213,476,056
Total At Amortized Cost 641,446,932 641,446,932
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 273,148,980 273,148,980
Total Financial Assets 914,595,912 - - 914,595,912
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 407,678,482 407,678,482
Loans and Borrowings 4,908,279 4,908,279
Total Financial Liabilities 412,586,761 - - 412,586,761

q00
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital
The Group has single class of equity shares where shares of Soaltee Hotel Limited have face value of
Rs. 10 per share and subsidiaries have face value of Rs. 100 per share. Every member holding equity
shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid up equity share
capital.

4.2 Non-Controlling Interest
Soaltee Hotel Ltd. has made investment in two subsidiaries where holding in one is 100% and on the
other is 73.63%. Upon consolidation of the financial statements, total portion of financial statements is
added by eliminating the portion of other shareholders by way of non-controlling interest.

4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings

a. Share premium
SHL had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by SHL in excess of its face
value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in Company Act 2063.

b. Other Reserves
SHL had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on this reserve
since then.

c. Retained Earning
Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Group uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders.

d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that
are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

e. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of SHL was revalued. For the first time
adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at deemed cost
which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits

a. Gratuity
Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which SHL was required
to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary of the staff.
Changes in Labor law has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined contribution plan
whereby SHL is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration as gratuity to employee with
effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. SHL has enrolled itself and it's employees in Social Security Fund (SSF) in
Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making contribution towards Employee Gratuity in the

fund.
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76

Opening Liability 329,414,263 317,491,891
Payment Made (13,011,014 (6,662,852)
Provision Made 18,566,486 18,585,224
Reversal of Excess Provision (10,570,091) -
Government Grant towards SSF for Gratuity (4,760,202) -
Closing Liability 319,639,442 329,414,263

b. Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability is

as follows:
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76

Opening Liability 122,289,649 104,181,901
Service Cost 3,472,909 7,084,177
Interest Cost 7,656,926 7,229,749
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (6,641,410) 5,593,297
Benefit Paid (6,416,691) (1,799,475)
Closing Liability (A) 120,361,383 122,289,649
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 120,361,383 114,216,378
Deferred Liability (A-B) - 8,073,271

909
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Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as follows:

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Discount Rate 6.43% 6.43%
Rate of Compensation Increase 6% 6%
Average Expected Future Service 13.5 15
Average Duration of Liabilities 16.5 17

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Effect on:
- Service Cost (210,828) (913,985)
- Interest Cost 1,190,810 1,032,820
- Leave Liability (11,435,257) (12,582,707)

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Effect on:
- Service Cost 254,876 1,113,886
- Interest Cost (1,191,440) (1,032,820)
- Leave Liability 13,503,921 14,932,148
4.5 Lease
SHL has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2 years. The future minimum
lease rental payment to be made is as follows:
Period 2076-77 2075-76
Up to one year 1,050,000 1,045,560
One to five years 1,102,500 4,182,240
Above five years - 648,476
Total 2,152,500 5,876,276
SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets on lease.
Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:
Period 2076-77 2075-76
Up to one year 33,509,181 36,382,104
One to five years 190,894,061 120,225,566
Above five years 351,517,808 470,367,452
Total 575,921,050 626,975,122
The Board of Directors of SHL has decided to grant waiver for the lease payments of lessees whose
business was significantly and adversely affected by COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent government-
imposed lockdown.
4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility
During the year, SHL has provided Rs. 1.12 million (previous year Rs. 2.99 million (1% of net profit
after tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises Act
2076.
4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

903

The Group’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Board of each Group and senior management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management. The Group's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.
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4.8

i. Market Risk
In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues,
the tourism sector looks for bright future. However there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the group through
years of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

ii. Credit Risk
The Group (SHL, in particular) provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it
enjoy credit facility from it creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of
company debtors' ability to pay SHL within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly there
exist the credit risks to that extent. The Group through its experience over the many years has
been managing such risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular
recoverability position by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Group has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. Group
monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.
The Group’s current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the

liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.

iv. Operational Risk

Group has been in operation since more than 50 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for
the activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the companies of Group is required to also follow
specific operating guidelines issued by its franchise. Group believes that the controls implemented
by the company have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also
carries out Control Self Assessment at reasonable interval where the SHL scored high level marks
placing it as one among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

SHL's revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation so be on
the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation will contribute
certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will have the risk
of impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange rate
fluctuation has generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as
well. The Group has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for
substantial period so as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the Group comprises of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence and Board of Directors.

Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Group is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of SHL. SEPL has four representatives in the
current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667 (previous year Rs. 66,667) to
SHL as operating lease rent. There is no outstanding balance at the year end.

Entity where the Group has significant influence is:

i. Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. is associate of the Group. One of the subsidiary of
SHL, Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. has 24% shares in this company with investment of Rs. 261.84
million. There is no transaction or outstanding balance of this company with the Group.

Other related entities

i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)
Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of SHL. NAC has one representative in the
Board of SHL.

SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Particulars Revenue (in million) Receivable (in million)
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year
Flight Catering Services 211.79 182.03 52.77 31.71
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ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

c. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of each companies. As SHL is the major
shareholder of all subsidiaries, the Board of those companies is ultimately controlled by Board of SHL.

The composition of Board of SHL on the reporting date is as follows:

Name

Position

Representative of

Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista

Executive Chairman

Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha

Director

Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Ganesh Bahadur Chand Director Nepal Airlines Corporation

Mr. Venkatesh Gomatam Director (Resigned on Holiday Inns Investment (Nepal) Ltd.
27.09.2020) (Nominee Withdrawn)

Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder

Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder

Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder

Mr. Vivek Bhalla

Alternate Director to Mr.

Holiday Inns Investment (Nepal) Ltd.

Venketash Gomatam
(Resigned on 27.09.2020)

(Nominee Withdrawn)

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 15,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending
each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee
meetings during the year amounts to Rs. 0.55 million (previous year Rs. 1.18 million).

d. Key Management Personnel
The Groups' key management personnel include are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL and
General Manager of Soaltee Crowne Plaza.
Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 29.68 million (previous year
Rs. 37.49 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman of SHL also includes the
performance incentive paid based on the profit of Hotel.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend
Total unpaid dividend of SHL amounted to Rs. 20.79 million (previous year Rs. 9.08 million).

4.10 Trade and Other Receivable

4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee recoverable from Airlines
Civil Aviation Fees levied on Inflight catering services provided on international flights by SHL to three
different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted to Rs
7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under
Non-current Trade and other receivables.

4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways
Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the
reporting date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency
proceedings. In October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the
Committee of Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways
& confirmed by Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the
proceeding and business revival is yet to be known.

4.11 Lien on company's assets

Current and non-current assets of SHL, where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to bankers

providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan against a

vehicle only amounting to Rs. 3.82 million (previous year Rs. 4.90 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability

Group recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and whose

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future

events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result of past

events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be

measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate reflection in the

current financial year.

4.13 Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by Group amounted to Rs. 2.9 million (previous year Rs. 2.9 million)

q0%
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4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

Litigations or legal cases

i. Income tax Matters
Revenue Tribunal has decided in SHL's favour against the appeal made relating to assessment
pertaining to FY 2068-69. However, Revenue Office has filed appeal in the Honourable Supreme
Court. Decision of such appeal is still pending. SHL is of the opinion that there would not be
significant obligation relating such appeal being considered at the Court.

ii. Assessment status

SHL has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2071-72 and additional demand of tax Rs. 1,837,680
made by Large Taxpayers Office. The management considers no significant obligation that would
arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to
accumulated profit as per its practice.

SHL has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2072-73 and additional demand of tax Rs. 2,413,333
made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management considers no
significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will
be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

iii. Casino Royalty
Pursuant to the litigation case filed by SHL against Government of Nepal for its demand of Casino
Royalty for the financial year 2005/06 (2062/63) till November 2012 (24 Kartik 2069) from SHL
instead of then Lessee, Nepal Recreation Centre Pvt. Ltd, the verdict was issued in favour of SHL
from Honourable Supreme Court of Nepal. Accordingly, the management considers that no further
obligation arises under such demand by the GON for such Royalty and no provision for the
additional claim has been made.

iv: Arbitration

SHL has filed a writ petition in the Supreme Court of Nepal challenging the judgment of
Honourable High Court, Patan for the appointment of arbitrator in a case filed by the Nepal
Recreation Centre Pvt Ltd. for the appointment of arbitrators pursuant to the Casino Lease
Agreement. The matter is sub-judice before the Honourable Supreme Court. Another case is
pending in the Honourable High Court, Patan in pursuant to appointment of Arbitrator.

v. Legal cases
SHL has filed a few cases for recovery of dues from some debtors in the course of its regular
business.

Capital Commitment
Capital contract of SHL remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 2.62
million (Previous year Rs. 110.92 million).

Letter of Credit
There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.

Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour
law in previous fiscal year, this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. SHL has
paid Rs. NIL (previous year Rs. 10 million) during the year out of this fund to a separate entity called
Employee Housing.

Operating Segment

Management of the companies of the Group has considered the total operation to be segregable into
two operating segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Core hotel business segment: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related
recreational facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major
segment.

ii. Flight catering segment: The Company provides flight catering services to airlines. This is
different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and
related facilities to meet its standards.
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The financial information about the identified segments are as follows: (Amount in millions)
Operating Segment Hotel Operation | Flight Catering | Total
Revenue

- Food 371.49 427.58 799.07

- Room 311.35 311.35

- Beverage 33.39 2.11 35.50

- Others 3.47 2.56 6.03
Interest Income 25.78 25.78
Other Income 88.83 88.83
Total Revenue 834.31 432.25 1,266.56
Consumption cost 103.90 102.34 206.24
Employee Benefit Expenses 291.85 151.66 443.51
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 251.36 130.57 381.93
Depreciation and Amortization 87.39 4.56 91.95
Finance Cost 0.58 0.58
Total Expenses* 735.08 389.13 1,124.21
Segment Result 99.24 43.12 142.35
Income Tax 28.40
Profit for the period 113.95
Segment Assets 2,392.72 140.75 2,533.47
| Segment Liabilities** 2,533.47

*  Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while
common segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.
**  Segment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of
segment liability.
4.19 Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF)
The Government of Nepal (GoN) announced that it would contribute 31% of the basic salary to Social
Security Fund (SSF) on behalf of the registered contributors (20% employers contribution and 11%
employees) as a relief to employers and employees impacted during the countrywide lockdown period
due to COVID-19. The Company started contributing to SSF after its enrolment in Chaitra 2076 and
qualifies for the Grant related to Income. Accordingly, the Company has recognized such contributions
of Rs. 11.43 million in employee’s SSF for the month Baisakh, Jestha and Ashad 2077 as Government
grant and recognized the corresponding amount as employee cost in the financial statements.

4.20 Capital Management
Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.
The Companies of the Group manage their capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Group is based on
management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic
needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Group’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Group's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on
total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Group's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Group. The Group will take appropriate steps in
order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Group’s goal is to continue to be able
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.

4.21 Going Concern
Impact of COVID-19
The Group faces significant uncertainties due to COVID-19 which have impacted the operations of the
Group adversely starting from the month of March 2020 onwards. Management has assessed the
impact of existing and anticipated effects of COVID-19 on the future cash flow projections and has
prepared a range of scenarios to estimate possible financing requirements. Nonetheless, management
is confident of its ability to generate cash inflows from operations and also raise long term funds to
meet its obligations on due date.
Also refer note 2.1.3 (e) Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19.
Based on aforesaid assessment, management believes that as per estimates made conservatively, the
Group will continue as a going concern and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise the
carrying amount of its assets as on 15 July 2020.

4.22 Regrouping and Round off
Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.

o
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